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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT  
 
 
 
To the Board of County Commissioners  
Alamosa County, Colorado  
Alamosa, Colorado   
 
Report on the Financial Statements  

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities,  the business -type 
activities,  each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of Alamosa County, Colorado 
(the County), as of and for the year ended December 31, 2016, and the related notes to the financial 
statements,  which collectively comprise the County’s basic financial statements as listed in the table of 
contents.  
 
Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements   

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in 
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes 
the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair 
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or 
error.  
 
Auditors’ Responsibility  

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted 
our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and 
the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards , issued by the 
Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to 
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.  
 
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in 
the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors’ judgment, including the 
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. 
In making those risk assessmen ts, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation 
and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in 
the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s 
internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the 
appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates 
made by managemen t, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.  
 
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for 
our audit opinions.  
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Opinions  

In our opinion, the financial statemen ts referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the 
respective financial position of the governmental activities,  the business -type activities,  each major fund, 
and the aggregate remaining fund information of the County, as of December 31, 2016, and the respective 
changes in financial position , and, where applicable, cash flows thereof, for the year then ended in 
accordance  with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.  
 
Other Matters  

Required Supplementary Information  

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management’s 
discussion and analysis and budgetary comparison information on pages I through X and 31 through 35 
be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information, although not a part of the 
basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it 
to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statement s in an appropriate 
operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required 
supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States 
of America, which consisted  of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information 
and comparing the information for consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic 
financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. 
We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures 
do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.  
 
Other Information  

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively 
comprise the County’s  basic financial statements. The combining fund financial schedules and the Local 
Highway Finance Report are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of 
the basic financial statements. The schedule of expenditures of federal awards is presented for purposes of 
additional analysis as required by Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations  (CFR) Part 200, Uniform 
Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards , and is also 
not a required part of the basic financial statements.  
 
The combining fund financial  schedules , the schedule of expenditures of federal awards, and the Local 
Highway Finance Report are the responsibility of management and were derived from and relate directly 
to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financi al statements. Such 
information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial 
statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information 
directly to the underlying accounti ng and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to 
the basic financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing 
standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the combining fund 
financial schedules , the schedule of expenditures of federal awards , and the Local Highway Finance 
Report  are fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the basic financial statements as a whole.  
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Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards  

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards , we have also issued our report dated June 16, 2017, 
on our consideration of the County’s internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its 
compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other 
matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial 
reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on internal control 
over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in 
accordance with Government Auditing Standards  in considering the County’s internal control over 
financial reporting and compliance.  
 
 
 
Wall, Smith, Bateman Inc.  
Alamosa, Colorado  
 
June 16, 2017 

 
 

KimB
Wall, Smith, Bateman Inc.



MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS                                                        Alamosa County, Colorado 
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This section of Alamosa County’s (the County) annual financial report is presented to provide readers with a narrative overview 

and analysis of the County’s financial performance during the calendar year ended December 31, 2016.  We encourage readers 

to consider the information presented in this overview in conjunction with the financial statement information as provided.  

                                                                                                                                                                                                

 
 

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS 

 

� In total, the County’s total assets of $62,409,811 exceed its total liabilities and deferred inflows of $33,692,201 by 

$28,717,610 (net position) for the calendar year reported. Of this amount $12,767,826 (44%) may be used to meet the 

government’s ongoing obligations to citizens and creditors. 

 

� In total, net position increased by $3,624,752 or 14%. The majority of this increase is related to a new revenue source for 

the County.  Beginning in 2016, the County starting collecting an additional 1% sales tax for the Justice Center Fund.   

 

� The County’s governmental funds reported combined ending fund balances of $38,817,875, an increase of 

$27,292,881(237%) in comparison to 2015. $23,948,169 of this increase (88%) can be attributed to the issuance of COP’s 

and the premium on the COP’s that are related to the County’s Detention Center and 12th Judicial Center Construction 

Projects.  These projects will begin Construction in 2017. 

 

� At the end of the current calendar year, unassigned fund balance for the General Fund was $2,357,422, or 29% of total 

General Fund expenditures, an increase of $704,572 in comparison to 2015. 

 

OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

This Management Discussion and Analysis document introduces the County’s basic financial statements.  The basic financial 

statements include: 

1) Government-wide Financial Statements 

2) Fund Financial Statements, and 

3) Notes to the Basic Financial Statements. 

This report also contains other supplementary information in addition to the basic financial statements. 

GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

The government-wide financial statements are designed to provide readers with a broad overview of the County’s finances as a 

whole, using accounting methods comparable to those used by private-sector companies.  They include the following two 

statements: 

 The Statement of Net Position presents information on the County’s assets, liabilities and deferred inflows, with the 

difference between the two factors reported as net position.  Over time, increases or decrease in net position may serve as 

a useful indicator of whether the financial health of the County is improving or deteriorating. 

 The Statement of Activities presents information demonstrating how the County’s net position changed during the most 

recent fiscal year as compared with the previous fiscal year.  All changes in net position are reported as soon as the 

underlying event giving rise to the change occurs, regardless of the timing of related cash flows.  Thus, all of the current 

year’s revenues and expenses are accounted for in this statement regardless of when cash is actually received or paid. 

These statements are presented to distinguish functions of the County that are principally supported by taxes and 

intergovernmental revenues (governmental activities) from those that are intended to recover all or a significant portion of their 

costs through user fees and charges (business-type activities).  The governmental activities of the County include general 

government; public safety; health and welfare; highways and streets; judicial; auxiliary services; culture and recreation. 
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FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

A fund is an accounting device that a government uses to maintain control over and account for specific sources of funding that 

are to be spent for specific purposes.  The County uses funds to ensure and demonstrate compliance with statutory requirements.  

These statements focus more on the individual functions of the County, reporting on financial operations in a more detailed 

format than is found in the government-wide statements.  The County has three kinds of funds: 

-   Governmental funds are used to account for essentially the same functions reported as governmental activities in the 

government-wide financial statements.  Unlike the government-wide financial statements, governmental funds focus on the 

near-term inflows and outflows of spendable resources, as well as on balances of spendable resources available at the end of the 

fiscal year.  Since the government-wide focus includes long-term view, comparisons between these two perspectives may provide 

insight into the long-term impact of short-term financing decisions.  Both the governmental fund balance sheet and the 

governmental fund operating statement provide a reconciliation to assist in understanding the differences between these two 

perspectives.   

Alamosa County maintains six major governmental funds and five non-major funds. Information is presented separately in the 

governmental funds balance sheet and in the governmental funds statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund 

balances for the major governmental funds.  Individual fund information for non-major governmental funds is found in combining 

statements in a later section of this report.  

-   Proprietary funds are used to account for services for which the County charges customers a fee.  The County maintains two 

proprietary funds. One is classified as an internal service fund and one is a business type.  Internal service funds are used to report 

activities that provide supplies and services for the County’s other programs and activities.  The County has one proprietary fund 

classified as an internal Health Insurance Fund.  The Health Insurance fund is used to accumulate funds to pay employee health 

insurance premiums.  Because the internal service fund serves only governmental activities, this fund has been included within 

governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements.   

-  Fiduciary funds are used to account for resources held for the benefit of parties outside the County, i.e., the Trust & Agency 

Funds.  Fiduciary funds are not reflected in the government-wide financial statements because the resources of those funds are 

not available to support the County’s own programs.  Treasurer’s collections and the Jail/Inmate deposits are accounted for in 

this fund area.   

NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

The Notes to the Basic Financial Statements provide a more detailed explanation of some of the information contained in the 

financial statements that is essential to gain a better understanding of the data provided in the government-wide and fund 

financial statements.   

OTHER INFORMATION 

In addition to the basic financial statements and accompanying notes, this report also presents certain required supplementary 

information including combining and individual fund statements as well as budgetary schedules comparing original budgets, final 

budgets, and actual expenditures for all funds subject to budgetary restrictions.   

COMPONENT UNITS 

The County will recognize the following component units of government for inclusion in the financial analysis: 

1) Alamosa County Events & Local Marketing District – Local Marketing District 

2) Alamosa County Events & Local Marketing District – Tourism & Development 

3) Alamosa (Northwest) Weed Control District 
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The financial information for these component units of government has been blended into the County’s financial statements as 

“Special Revenue Funds.”  More information on component units can be found in the notes to the basic financial statements.   

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF ALAMOSA COUNTY AS A WHOLE 

The following table was derived from the current and prior years Statement of Net Position: 

Governmental Activities Business-Type Activities

2016 2015 2016 2015

Assets:

    Current and other assets 44,904,304$ 17,171,852$  53,675$         57,572$         

    Capital assets 17,431,740    16,836,044     20,092            -                           

Total Assets 62,336,044    34,007,896     73,767            57,572            

Liabilities:

    Current and other liabilities 2,754,422       1,560,805        1,556               717                   

    Long-term liabilities 26,755,982    3,256,390        

Total Liabilities 29,510,404    4,817,195        1,556               717                   

Deferred Inflows of Resources - Noncurrent 4,180,241       4,154,698        -                           -                           

Net Position:

    Net Investment in Capital Assets 14,757,936    13,491,316     -                           -                           

    Restricted 1,191,848       1,140,581        -                           -                           

    Unrestricted 12,695,615    10,404,106     72,211            56,855            

Total net position 28,645,399$ 25,036,003$  72,211$         56,855$          

Alamosa County’s governmental assets exceed liabilities by $28,645,399(net position) in 2016 and by $25,036,003 in 2015 

providing an overall increase in governmental net position of $3,609,396(14%).  Current and other assets increased by 

$27,732,452 (161%). The County’s Capital assets increased $595,696 (3.5%), which included asset additions of $971,375 being 

offset by the depreciation of current assets of $1,306,685 and asset deletions of $598,420. There was also an increase in Capital 

assets not being depreciated of $939,379 for Construction In Progress.  There was also an increase of $24,693,209 (513%) in the 

total liabilities of the County from 2015 to 2016.  $23,948,169 of this increase is attributed to the new Lease Purchase Agreement 

for the Detention Center Remodel/Addition and 12th Judicial Center Construction Projects.  

Note that approximately 52% of the County’s governmental net position are invested in capital assets (e.g. land, buildings and 

improvements, equipment and infrastructure); less any related debt used to acquire those assets that is still outstanding.  The 

County uses these capital assets to provide services to citizens.  Consequently, these assets are not available for future spending.  

Although the County’s investment in its capital assets is reported net of related debt, the resources needed to repay this debt 

must be provided from other sources since the capital assets themselves cannot be used to liquidate these liabilities 

The County’s portion of unrestricted net position $12,695,615 (44%) may be used to meet the government’s ongoing obligations 

to citizens and creditors.   

A change in accounting principle was made in 2015.  In previous years the Mosca General Improvement District was accounted 

for as a special revenue fund.  Beginning in 2015, the District has been more appropriately reported in a business type fund.  

Alamosa County’s business type assets exceed liabilities by $72,211(net position) in 2016 and by $56,855 in 2015 providing an 

overall increase in business net position of $15,356(27%).     
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The following table was derived from the current and prior years’ Statement of Activities: 

SUMMARY OF CHANGES IN NET POSITION

Governmental Activities Business-Type Activities

2016 2015 2016 2015

Revenues:

  Program Revenues:

    Charges for services 1,405,727$        1,321,919$             16,939$      20,100$          

    Operating Grants and contributions 20,167,650        19,745,701             -                  -                      

    Capital Grants and contributions 638,119                1,101,130                8,363            -                      

  General Revenues: -                  -                      

    Property taxes 4,184,112           4,092,063                -                  -                      

    Sales taxes 4,961,315           2,116,991                -                  -                      

    Other taxes 1,268,255           1,166,630                -                  -                      

    Payment in Lieu of taxes 214,688                209,869                    -                  -                      

    Interest on investments 79,781                   25,304                       -                  -                      

   Gain on Sale of Assets 165,206                20,363                       -                  -                      

    Miscellaneous 135,917                174,939                    -                  -                      

Total revenues 33,220,770        29,974,909             25,302$      20,100$          

Expenses:

  Program expense:

    Operating -$                         -$                             9,946$         36,070$          

    General government 3,677,874           4,617,232                -                  -                      

    Public safety 4,151,944           3,796,703                -                  -                      

    Health and welfare 17,640,175        17,875,796             -                  -                      

    Highways and streets 2,641,985           2,411,804                -                  -                      

    Judicial 246,704                232,770                    -                  -                      

    Auxiliary services 161,827                62,973                       -                  -                      

    Culture and recreation 560,304                514,269                    -                  -                      

    Interset on long-term debt 530,561                137,896                    -                  -                      

Total expenses 29,611,374        29,649,443             9,946$         36,070$          

Excess (deficiency) in net position before Transfers 3,609,396           325,466                    15,356         (15,970)            

Transfers to other funds -                                  (59,300)                      -                  59,300             

Change in net position 3,609,396           266,166                    15,356         43,330             

Net position - beginning, as previously stated 25,036,003        24,783,362             56,855         -                      

 Change in accounting principle -                                  (13,525)                      -                  13,525             

Net position - beginning, restated 25,036,003        24,769,837             56,855         13,525             

Net position - ending 28,645,399        25,036,003             72,211         56,855             

 

A key factor in determining a governments’ ability to fund operations is whether revenues exceed expenses for each calendar 

year.  In 2016, revenues exceeded expenses by $3,609,396, which is an increase to the 2015 excess of $266,166.  In 2016, the 

County began collected an additional 1% Sales tax that was approved by the voters for the Construction projects mentioned 

above and for operating expenditures for the County Sheriff’s office. The additional sales tax revenue attributes to much of this 

increases.  The County must continue to evaluate costs, services, and the efficiency of providing them.   

 

GOVERNMENTAL REVENUES  

Total revenues reported in the Government-wide Statement of Activities for 2016 increased by $3,251,063(11%) compared to 

2015.  Sales tax increased by $2,844,324 from 2015, 87% of the total revenue increase.  There were also slight increases in Interest 

on Investments and Gain on Sale of Assets.    
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2016 Governmental Revenues

Increase/ Percent  

2016 2015 Decrease Change

Taxes 10,408,931$    7,372,151$      3,036,780$    41.19%

Intergovernmental Revenue 20,493,428      21,000,712      (507,284)        -2.42%

Licenses and Permits 70,110               65,904               4,206               6.38%

Interest on Investments 79,781               25,304               54,477            215.29%

Charges for Services 1,110,995         1,094,413         16,582            1.52%

Miscellaneous 1,358,487         907,697            450,790          49.66%

Total Revenue 33,521,732$    30,466,181$    3,055,551$    10.03%

 

The County relies greatly on Intergovernmental Revenue and Taxes to support operations and capital acquisitions. 

 

 

 

GOVERNMENTAL EXPENDITURES 

Total reported expenditures for 2016 increased by $1,556,380 (5%).  Expenditures are broken down by classification and 

compared to 2015 for further detail. 
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2016 Governmental Expenditures

Increase/ Percent

2016 2015 Decrease Change

General Government 3,724,007$                 4,810,420$                 (1,086,413)$                -22.58%

Public Safety 3,962,204                    3,612,400                    349,804                       9.68%

Health and Welfare 17,570,008                 17,767,703                 (197,695)                      -1.11%

Highways and Streets 1,980,874                    1,801,676                    179,198                       9.95%

Judicial 246,704                       232,770                       13,934                          5.99%

Auxiliary Services 161,827                       62,973                          98,854                          156.98%

Culture and Recreation 532,894                       484,416                       48,478                          10.01%

Capital Outlay 1,880,155                    -                                     1,880,155                    

Debt Service 727,590                       457,525                       270,065                       59.03%

Total Expenditures 30,786,263$               29,229,883$               1,556,380$                 5.32%

 

During 2016, Public Safety expenditures increased by 9.68% compared to 2015.  The County still faces challenges with increased 

numbers in inmate population and related expenditures, such as food and transport.  Capital outlay increased due to $939,379 

for Construction In Progress and $971,375 allocated to equipment and vehicles.  Approximately 50% of the equipment purchase 

was related to the buyout and new purchase of Road Graders for the Road & Bridge Department.  
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FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE COUNTY’S GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 

Governmental Funds 

The focus of the County’s governmental funds is to provide information on short-term inflows and outflows, as well as, what 

resources remain available for future spending.  Such information is useful in assessing the County’s financing requirements.  As 

mentioned, unassigned fund balance may serve as a useful measure of a government’s net resources available for spending at 

the end of the fiscal year.  Governmenal funds reported total ending fund balance of $38,817,875, an increase of $27,292,881 

(237%) over 2015.  Of this year-end total, $12,695,615 is unrestricted indicating availability for continuing County service 

requirements.   

The following table depicts the County’s six major governmental funds financial activities for 2016 and 2015. The Justice Center 

and Facilities Expansion Fund were not considered major funds in 2015.  2016 was the first year of reporting for the Justice Center 

Fund.  

MAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS ACTIVITY

General Road & Bridge Social Services Public Health Justice Center Facilities Expansion

Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund

Fiscal year 2016

Revenues 8,714,078$    2,580,355$    14,301,126$   3,506,688$    3,348,176$    45,306$                   

Expenditures 8,115,716      2,896,754      14,223,083      3,487,395      180,802          1,099,623               

Other financing sources/(uses) 600,000          609,243          -                         -                       (1,468,373)    24,816,542             

Inc/(dec) in fund balance 1,198,362      292,844          78,043              19,293            1,699,001      23,762,225             

Fiscal year 2015

Revenues 7,925,097$    2,231,006$    14,704,681$   3,500,109$    -$                1,104,627$             

Expenditures 7,513,373      1,890,082      14,444,457      3,322,950      -                       1,212,486               

Other financing sources/(uses) 161,063          -                       -                         -                       -                       (200,000)                 

Inc/(dec) in fund balance 572,787          340,924          260,224            177,159          -                       (307,859)                  

- General Fund – As the County’s major operating fund, the General Fund accounts for all transactions not accounted for in other 

funds.  The General Fund completed the year with a total fund balance of $4,843,757, a 32.8% increase over 2015.  Unassigned 

fund balance represents 48.7% of total fund balance. 

Total General Fund revenues for 2016 were $8,714,078 an increase of $788,981 over 2015.  Taxes account for $6,041,450 (69.3%) 

of total general fund revenues.  Tax collections saw an increase of $393,183 (6.96%) over 2015.  Miscellaneous Revenues 

increased by $457,949(73%) from 2015.    

In total, operating expenditures had an increase by $602,343 (8%) over 2015.    

Actual expenditures were $257,280 less than budgeted. 

-  Road and Bridge Fund – The Road and Bridge Fund was also considered a major fund for 2016.  The Road and Bridge funds 

primary purpose is to account for the maintenance and improvement of the County’s road and bridge infrastructure as well as 

snow removal.  The fund balance increased by $292,844 (14.53%) in 2016 and has an overall fund balance of $2,307,537 of which 

$349,125 is inventory and is non-spendable.  This leaves $1,958,412 of available fund balance in the fund. This increase can be 

attributed to a hold on large construction projects in order to build up reserves in the fund for future equipment purchases or 

projects.    
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Total revenues in this fund increased by $349,349 (16%) over 2015. In 2016, the Road and Bridge fund starting receiving the 

payment in lieu of tax dollars.  The department also sold several pieces of equipment.  The majority of Road and Bridge’s revenue 

is derived from intergovernmental sources and under statute must be expended for road and bridge construction, maintenance 

and repair.  These revenues made up 89% of the total revenues for 2016.   

Expenditures increased by $1,006,672 (53%) over 2015.  This relates primary to the purchase of 2 new road graders for the 

department, as well as the principal buy out on 2 road graders that had been financed via lease purchase.  

- Social Services Fund – The Social Services Fund provides and coordinates a variety of State mandated social services including 

public assistance, child support, and family service programs.  Fund balance increased by $78,043 (5.5%) over 2015.  

Total revenues in the social services fund were $14,301,126, of this only 4.6% is funded through property tax revenues.  The 

remaining 95.4% is funded by federal and state grants and reimbursements.   

Total expenditures in the social services fund for 2016 were $14,223,083. 

- Public Health Fund – The Public Health fund is used to account for the multiple programs associated with the provision of public 

health services.  Fund balance increased in the public health fund by $19,293 (.69%) compared to 2015, leaving a total ending 

fund balance of $2,779,988.   

Total revenues in this fund for 2016 were $3,348,176 an increase of $6,579 (.18%) over 2015.  The majority of public health’s 

revenues are derived from intergovernmental revenues (92.03%).   

Total expenditures during 2016 increased by $164,445(4.9%) over 2015.  Total expenditures for the fund for 2016 were 

$3,487,395. 

- Justice Center Fund – The Justice Center fund was established in 2016 and is used to account for the Voter approved 1% sales 

tax for Construction and Remodel of the County Jail, Construction of a new 12th Judicial Courthouse and additional operating 

expenses for the Sheriff department.   Fund balance for 2016 is $1,699,001.  

Total revenues in this fund for 2016 were $3,348,176. The main source of revenue for the Justice Center Fund is the approved 

1% Sales tax collections.  

Total expenditures during 2016 were $180,802. 

- Facilities Expansion Fund – The Facilities Expansion Fund is used to account for capital acquisition or improvements, including 

construction of capital facilities to all County facilities.  Fund balance increased by $23,762,225 (98%) compared to 2015, leaving 

a total ending fund balance of $24,108,245.  In 2016 the County issued COP’s for the construction projects mentioned above.  

Total proceeds from the COP’s and Capital Lease were $23,948,169. 

Total revenues in this fund for 2016 were $45,306 a decrease of $1,059,321(96%) over 2015.  Facilities expansion revenues tend 

to fluctuate with different projects and different revenue sources.  They vary from grants, Mill levy allocation, and transfers from 

other funds.    

Total expenditures during 2016 decreased by $112,863(9.3%) over 2015.  Total expenditures for the fund for 2016 were 

$1,099,623. 

Other Non-major Governmental Funds 

Information for non-major governmental funds is aggregated and reported as other types of funds in the statement of revenues, 

expenditures and changes in fund balances.  Further detail by fund is reported as part of the other supplementary information 

section of this financial report.  Included in the County’s non-major governmental funds are the following; Conservation Trust 

Fund and the Lease Service Fund.  In addition, the component units of government are also considered as non-major 

governmental funds and they consist of the following; Alamosa County Events & Local Marketing District Fund-Local Marketing 
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District; Alamosa County Events & Local Marketing District-Tourism & Development Fund and the Alamosa (Northwest) Weed 

Control District Fund.   

For the year ended 2016, the non-major governmental funds had an ending fund balance of $1,579,188. 

Proprietary Funds 

Total net position of the Internal Service fund at the end of the year amounted to $353,735.  

Total net position of the Mosca General Improvement District Fund at the end of the year amounted to $72,211. 

Fiduciary/Trust & Agency Funds 

Fiduciary funds are not reported in the Government-wide financial statements.  A total of $1,021,791 in deposits was being held 

at December 31, 2016. 

ASSET AND DEBT ADMINISTRATION 

Capital Assets 

Alamosa County’s investments in capital assets for its governmental activities as of December 31, 2016 amounted to $17,431,740 

(net of accumulated depreciation).  Capital assets include land, buildings and improvements, furniture and equipment, vehicles 

and infrastructure.  Additional information regarding capital assets can be found in Note 7. 

Long-Term Debt 

As of December 31, 2016, Alamosa County had long-term debt outstanding of $27,957,951.  Long-term debt consists of several 

lease purchase agreements and compensated absences for employees.  Additional information regarding long-term debt can be 

found in Note 9.   

FACTORS AFFECTING FUTURE COUNTY FINANCIAL CONDITIONS 

 A 1% sales tax was approved by voters in 2015.  The sales tax began in 2016 and will be used for construction of a new 

Judicial Facility, Remodel and addition to the current county jail, and operating expenses related to Public Safety needs for 

Alamosa County citizens.   

 Alamosa County has been fortunate to maintain and even see a slight increase in sales tax over the past few years. 

 Stabilization of Community Development Fund by voluntary contributions from solar development companies.  Dollars may 

be utilized to provide non-government organizations with financial support, scholarships etc.  These funds can help offset a 

portion of revenue being lost from other revenues to the County. 

 Completion and implementation of a local road & bridge plan which will address the need of repairs and maintenance of 

county roads by prioritization.  Also address preventive maintenance to keep costs down in the long range.   

 Being consistent and competitive with our Pay plan to help maintain outstanding employees and recruitment of new ones.  

 Several projects to be applied for grant funding, if successful grant match dollars could be significant. 

 Moving forward with the Jail addition of 64 beds to the current facility, the County will be working very closely with the 

Sheriff to determine a feasible budget for the department.  The addition of beds will put financial pressure on the General 

Fund and the additional operational needs of the Sheriff’s department budget.  

 Alamosa County has also been awarded a FLAP grant for the Road & Bridge department for critical road repair to the Lane 6 

North.  The project can be financed over approximately 5 years, allowing for designation of future funds and reserves for 

the County’s $1.2 million dollar match for the project.  
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The County will aim to provide the citizens of Alamosa County with the highest quality of services while maintaining a healthy 

financial status as a government entity.  It is an important goal of the County to maintain our fund balances at a healthy level and 

to continue to build on those all while expanding operations and services to our citizens.  

REQUESTS FOR INFORMATION 

This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of the County’s finances and to demonstrate the County’s 

accountability for the monies it receives.  Questions concerning any of the information provided in this report or requests for 

additional financial information should be directed to the Alamosa County Finance Officer at POB 178, 8900 Independence Way, 

Alamosa, Colorado, 81101. 
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Governmental Business-Type
Activities Activities Total

ASSETS

  Current Assets
    Cash and Cash Equivalents 37,396,289$       37,226$              37,433,515$       
    Accounts Receivable 418,649              8,086                  426,735              
    Due from Treasurer's Agency Fund 220,000              -                         220,000              
    Due from Other Governments 2,276,380           8,363                  2,284,743           
    Property Taxes Receivable 4,180,241           -                         4,180,241           
    Inventories 363,020              -                         363,020              
    Prepaid Expenses 49,725                -                         49,725                
  Total Current Assets 44,904,304         53,675                44,957,979         

  Noncurrent Assets

    Capital Assets:
      Land 424,869              -                         424,869              
      Construction in Progress 939,379              20,092                959,471              
      Buildings and Improvements 16,037,378         -                         16,037,378         
      Furniture and Equipment 5,954,004           -                         5,954,004           
      Vehicles 1,647,659           -                         1,647,659           
      Infrastructure 19,729,864         -                         19,729,864         
      Less Accumulated Depreciation/Depletion (27,301,413)        -                         (27,301,413)        
  Total Noncurrent Assets 17,431,740         20,092                17,451,832         

TOTAL ASSETS 62,336,044         73,767                62,409,811         

LIABILITIES
  Current Liabilities
    Accounts Payable 758,929              1,556                  760,485              
    Due to Other Governments 307,608              -                         307,608              
    Unearned Grant Revenue 485,916              -                         485,916              
    Lease Purchase Agreement 1,146,606           -                         1,146,606           
    Notes Payable 23,027                -                         23,027                
    Compensated Absences 32,336                -                         32,336                
  Total Current Liabilities 2,754,422           1,556                  2,755,978           

  Noncurrent Liabilities
    Lease Purchase Agreement 23,719,495         -                         23,719,495         
    Notes Payable 220,117              -                         220,117              
    Premium on Certificates of Participation 2,430,660           -                         2,430,660           
    Compensated Absences 385,710              -                         385,710              

  Total Noncurrent Liabilities 26,755,982         -                         26,755,982         

TOTAL LIABILITIES 29,510,404         1,556                  29,511,960         

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES 
  Unavailable Revenue - Property Tax 4,180,241           -                         4,180,241           

NET POSITION

  Net Investment in Capital Assets 14,757,936         -                         14,757,936         
  Restricted for:
    TABOR 555,000              -                         555,000              
    Public Health - Single Entry Point/Home Care Allowance 636,848              -                         636,848              
  Unrestricted 12,695,615         72,211                12,767,826         

TOTAL NET POSITION 28,645,399$       72,211$              28,717,610$       

Primary Government

ALAMOSA COUNTY, COLORADO
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

December 31, 2016

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this financial statement.
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Charges Operating Capital
for Grants & Grants & Governmental Business-Type

Functions/Programs Expenses Services Contributions Contributions Activities Activities TOTAL
Primary Government:
  Governmental Activities:
    General government 3,677,874$    806,675$      729,830$      8,090$          (2,133,279)$  -$                  (2,133,279)$  
    Public safety 4,151,944     281,327        466,168        -                    (3,404,449)    -                    (3,404,449)    
    Health and welfare 17,640,175    275,371        16,840,523    -                    (524,281)       -                    (524,281)       
    Highways and streets 2,641,985     42,354          2,042,647     -                    (556,984)       -                    (556,984)       
    Judicial 246,704        -                    -                    630,029        383,325        -                    383,325        
    Auxiliary services 161,827        -                    14,316          -                    (147,511)       -                    (147,511)       
    Culture and recreation 560,304        -                    74,166          -                    (486,138)       -                    (486,138)       
    Interest on long-term debt 530,561        -                    -                    -                    (530,561)       -                    (530,561)       

  Total Governmental Activities 29,611,374    1,405,727     20,167,650    638,119        (7,399,878)    -                    (7,399,878)    

  Business-Type Activities
    Mosca General Improvement District 9,946            16,939          -                    8,363            -                    15,356          15,356          
  Total Business-Type Activities 9,946            16,939          -                    8,363            -                    15,356          15,356          

Total Primary Government 29,621,320$  1,422,666$    20,167,650$  646,482$      (7,399,878)    15,356          (7,384,522)    

General Revenues and Transfers:
  Taxes:
    General Property Taxes - Net 4,184,112     -                    4,184,112     
    Sales Taxes 4,961,315     -                    4,961,315     
    Other Taxes 1,268,255 -                    1,268,255     
  Payment in Lieu of Taxes 214,688        -                    214,688        
  Interest on Investments 79,781          -                    79,781          
  Miscellaneous 135,917        -                    135,917        
  Gain on Sale of Assets 165,206        -                    165,206        

Total General Revenues and Transfers 11,009,274    -                    11,009,274    

         Change in Net Position 3,609,396     15,356          3,624,752     

Net Position - Beginning of Year 25,036,003    56,855          25,092,858    

Net Position - End of Year 28,645,399$  72,211$        28,717,610$  

T
he accom

panying notes are an integral part of this financial statem
ent.
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ALAMOSA COUNTY, COLORADO
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

For the Year Ended December 31, 2016

Primary Government

Net (Expense) Revenue and
Changes in Net PositionProgram Revenues



Social Public Justice Facilities Other Total

General Road and Services Health Center Expansion

Fund Bridge Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Funds Funds

ASSETS

  Cash and Cash Equivalents 3,875,716$    1,781,385$    1,694,855$    2,426,111$    1,680,525$    24,099,888$  1,484,074$         37,042,554$       

  Accounts Receivable 2,086            -                    -                    407,563        -                    -                    9,000                 418,649             

  Property Taxes Receivable 3,499,320     29,514          585,750        -                    -                    -                    65,657               4,180,241          

  Due from Other Funds 822,478        10,000          42,570          -                    -                    455,025        -                         1,330,073          

  Due from Other Governments 641,211        205,796        251,978        -                    1,080,353     8,390            88,652               2,276,380          

  Inventory -                    349,125        -                    13,895          -                    -                    -                         363,020             

  Prepaid Expenses -                    -                    -                    49,725          -                    -                    -                         49,725               
TOTAL ASSETS 8,840,811$    2,375,820$    2,575,153$    2,897,294$    2,760,878$    24,563,303$  1,647,383$         45,660,642$       

LIABILITIES

  Accounts Payable 180,126$      38,769$        46,295$        31,769$        6,852$          455,058$      60$                    758,929$           

  Due to Other Funds 10,000          -                    -                    42,570          1,055,025     -                    2,478                 1,110,073          

  Due to Other Governments 307,608        -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                         307,608             

  Unearned Revenue - Grants -                    -                    442,949        42,967          -                    -                    -                         485,916             

TOTAL LIABILITIES 497,734        38,769          489,244        117,306        1,061,877     455,058        2,538                 2,662,526          

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES

  Unavailable Revenue - Property Tax 3,499,320     29,514          585,750        -                    -                    -                    65,657               4,180,241          

FUND BALANCE

Nonspendable - Inventory and Prepaid Expenses -                    349,125        -                    63,620          -                    -                    -                         412,745             

Restricted

  TABOR Amendment Reserve 555,000        -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                         555,000             

  Public Health - SEP/HCA -                    -                    -                    636,848        -                    -                    -                         636,848             

Committed

  Capital Projects -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    24,108,245    -                         24,108,245         

  Debt Service -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    301,391             301,391             

  Equipment Acquisition 300,358        -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                         300,358             

Assigned

  Highways and Streets -                    1,958,412     -                    -                    -                    -                    -                         1,958,412          

  Health and Welfare -                    -                    1,500,159     2,079,520     1,699,001     -                    -                         5,278,680          

  Culture and Recreation -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    1,110,410          1,110,410          

  Weed Control -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    167,387             167,387             

  Designated for Future Expenditures 1,630,977     -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                         1,630,977          

Unassigned 2,357,422     -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                         2,357,422          

TOTAL FUND BALANCE 4,843,757     2,307,537     1,500,159     2,779,988     1,699,001     24,108,245    1,579,188          38,817,875         

TOTAL LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS

OF RESOURCES, AND FUND BALANCE 8,840,811$    2,375,820$    2,575,153$    2,897,294$    2,760,878$    24,563,303$  1,647,383$         45,660,642$       
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ALAMOSA COUNTY, COLORADO

BALANCE SHEET
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

December 31, 2016

T
he accom

panying notes are an integral part of this financial statem
ent.

Governmental Governmental



TOTAL GOVERNMENTAL FUND BALANCES 38,817,875$    

    Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of 
    net position are different because:

    Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial resources
    and therefore are not reported in the funds. 17,431,740      

    Long-term liabilities are not due and payable in the current period and
    therefore are not reported in the funds.
             
                   Lease Purchase Agreements (24,866,101)$   
                   Notes Payable (243,144)         
                   Premium on Bonds (2,430,660)      
                   Compensated Absences (418,046)         

(27,957,951)     

    Internal service funds are used by management to charge the costs of
    services to individual funds.  The assets and liabilities of the internal
    service fund are included in governmental activities in the statement of
    net position. 353,735           

NET POSITION OF GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES 28,645,399$    

ALAMOSA COUNTY, COLORADO
RECONCILIATION OF TOTAL GOVERNMENTAL FUND BALANCES

TO THE STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
December 31, 2016

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this financial statement.
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Social Public Justice Facilities Other Total

General Road and Services Health Center Expansion

Fund Bridge Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Funds Funds

REVENUES

  Taxes 6,041,450$    99,010$        662,383$      -$                  2,718,147$    1,664$          886,277$         10,408,931$    

  Intergovernmental Revenue 617,040        2,298,198     13,638,743    3,227,162     630,029        8,090            74,166             20,493,428      

  Licenses and Permits 70,110          -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                      70,110             

  Interest on Investments 37,551          -                    -                    -                    -                    31,452          10,778             79,781             

  Charges for Services 858,590        -                    -                    252,405        -                    -                    -                      1,110,995        

  Miscellaneous 1,089,337     183,147        -                    27,121          -                    4,100            54,782             1,358,487        

TOTAL REVENUES 8,714,078     2,580,355     14,301,126    3,506,688     3,348,176     45,306          1,026,003        33,521,732      

EXPENDITURES

  Current Expenditures

    General Government 3,690,352     -                    -                    -                    -                    33,655          -                      3,724,007        

    Public Safety 3,962,204     -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                      3,962,204        

    Health and Welfare 3                   -                    14,155,950    3,414,055     -                    -                    -                      17,570,008      

    Highways and Streets -                    1,980,874     -                    -                    -                    -                    -                      1,980,874        

    Judicial 246,704        -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                      246,704           

    Auxiliary Services 161,827        -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                      161,827           

    Culture and Recreation -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    532,894           532,894           

  Capital Outlay 54,626          635,848        67,133          73,340          180,802        868,406        -                      1,880,155        

  Debt Service -                    280,032        -                    -                    -                    197,562        249,996           727,590           

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 8,115,716     2,896,754     14,223,083    3,487,395     180,802        1,099,623     782,890           30,786,263      

  Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues Over Expenditures 598,362        (316,399)       78,043          19,293          3,167,374     (1,054,317)    243,113           2,735,469        

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)

  Transfers In 600,000        -                    -                    -                    -                    868,373        -                      1,468,373        

  Transfers Out -                    -                    -                    -                    (1,468,373)    -                    -                      (1,468,373)       

  Premium on Issuance of COP's -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    2,213,169     -                      2,213,169        

  Sale of Capital Assets -                    165,206        -                    -                    -                    -                    -                      165,206           

  Capital Lease Proceeds -                    444,037        -                    -                    -                    21,735,000    -                      22,179,037      

TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) 600,000        609,243        -                    -                    (1,468,373)    24,816,542    -                      24,557,412      

  Net Change in Fund Balance 1,198,362     292,844        78,043          19,293          1,699,001     23,762,225    243,113           27,292,881      

Fund Balance at Beginning of Year 3,645,395     2,014,693     1,422,116     2,760,695     -                    346,020        1,336,075        11,524,994      

Fund Balance at End of Year 4,843,757$    2,307,537$    1,500,159$    2,779,988$    1,699,001$    24,108,245$  1,579,188$      38,817,875$    

T
he accom

panying notes are an integral part of this financial statem
ent.
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GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, 

For the Year Ended December 31, 2016

ALAMOSA COUNTY, COLORADO

AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE

Governmental Governmental



NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES - TOTAL GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 27,292,881$  

    Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of 
    activities are different because:  

    Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. However, in the
    statement of activities the cost of those assets is allocated over their
    estimated useful lives and reported as depreciation expense.  

                   Fixed Asset Additions 1,910,754$  

                   Deletions Net of Accumulated Depreciation (8,373)         

                   Depreciation Expense (1,306,685)   

595,696        

    Debt proceeds provide current financial resources to governmental funds,
    but issuing debt increases long-term liabilities in the statement of net
    position.  Repayment of debt principal is an expenditure in the governmental
    funds, but the repayment reduces long-term liabilities in the statement of 
    net position.  Repayment of principal include:

                   Lease Purchase Agreement Principal Payments 392,680       

                   Lease Purchase Agreement Proceeds (22,179,053) 

                   Note Principal Payments 21,856         
(21,764,517)  

    Certain transactions from the lease purchase agreement are expensed in the 
    governmental funds, but are required to be capitalized and amortized in the 
    government-wide financial statements.

                   Debt issuance costs (2,430,660)    

    Some expenses reported in the statement of activities do not require the 
    use of current financial resources and therefore are not reported as
    expenditures in governmental funds.

                   Compensated Absences (50,375)         

    Internal Service Funds are used by management to charge the costs of certain
    activities to individual funds.  The net revenue (expense) of the internal service
    funds is reported with governmental activities. (33,629)         

CHANGE IN NET POSITION OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 3,609,396$   

ALAMOSA COUNTY, COLORADO
RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES,

AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

For the Year Ended December 31, 2016
TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this financial statement.

9



BUSINESS-TYPE GOVERNMENTAL

ACTIVITIES ACTIVITIES

ENTERPRISE INTERNAL SERVICE

FUND FUND

MOSCA GENERAL HEALTH

IMPROVEMENT INSURANCE

DISTRICT FUND FUND

ASSETS

  Current Assets:

    Cash and Cash Equivalents 37,226$                    353,735$                  

    Accounts Receivable 8,086                        -                               

    Due from Other Government 8,363                        -                               

 Total Current Assets 53,675                      353,735                    

Noncurrent Assets:

   Capital Assets:

     Construction in Progress 20,092 -                               

Total Noncurrent Assets 20,092 -                               

TOTAL ASSETS 73,767                      353,735                    

LIABILITIES

  Current Liabilities

    Accounts Payable 1,556                        -                               

TOTAL LIABILITIES 1,556                        -                               

NET POSITION

  Unrestricted 72,211                      353,735                    

TOTAL NET POSITION 72,211$                    353,735$                  

ALAMOSA COUNTY, COLORADO
PROPRIETARY FUND

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

December 31, 2016

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this financial statement.
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BUSINESS-TYPE GOVERNMENTAL

ACTIVITIES ACTIVITIES

ENTERPRISE INTERNAL SERVICE

FUND FUND

MOSCA GENERAL HEALTH

IMPROVEMENT INSURANCE

DISTRICT FUND FUND

OPERATING REVENUES

  Taxes -$                               1,532$                       

  Intergovernmental Revenue 8,363                         -                                 

  Charges for Services 16,939                       -                                 

  Employer Contributions -                                 1,367,639                  

  Employee Contributions -                                 515,063                     

TOTAL OPERATING REVENUES 25,302                       1,884,234                  

OPERATING EXPENSES

  Utilities and Maintenance 9,946                         -                                 

  Premiums -                                 1,915,697                  

  Miscellaneous -                                 2,166                         

TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES 9,946                         1,917,863                  

CHANGE IN NET POSITION 15,356                       (33,629)                      

NET POSITION - BEGINNING OF YEAR 56,855                       387,364                     

NET POSITION - END OF YEAR 72,211$                     353,735$                   

ALAMOSA COUNTY, COLORADO
PROPRIETARY FUND

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND 

CHANGES IN NET POSITION

 December 31, 2016

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this financial statement.
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BUSINESS-TYPE GOVERNMENTAL

ACTIVITIES ACTIVITIES

ENTERPRISE INTERNAL SERVICE

FUND FUND
MOSCA GENERAL HEALTH

IMPROVEMENT INSURANCE
DISTRICT FUND FUND

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
  Cash Received From Services Provided 20,351$                    -$                              
  Cash Received From Interfund Services Provided -                               1,884,234                 
  Cash Paid to Suppliers/Vendors (9,107)                       (1,917,863)                

NET CASH PROVIDED (USED) BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES 11,244                      (33,629)                     

CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES -                               -                               

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED
  FINANCING ACTIVITIES
  Acquisition and construction of capital assets (20,092)                     -                               

NET CASH PROVIDED (USED) BY CAPITAL AND RELATED
  FINANCING ACTIVITIES (20,092)                     -                               

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES -                               -                               

NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH (8,848)                       (33,629)                     

CASH AT BEGINNING OF YEAR 46,074                      387,364                    
 
CASH AT END OF YEAR 37,226$                    353,735$                  

Reconciliation of Operating Income to Net Cash Provided (Used)
  by Operating Activities:

    Operating Income (Loss) 15,356$                    (33,629)$                   

    Adjustments to Reconcile Operating Income to
      Net Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Activities

      (Increase) Decrease in Accounts Receivable 3,412                        -                                   
      (Increase) Decrease in Due from Other Government (8,363)                       -                                   
      Increase (Decrease) in Accounts Payable 839                           -                               

NET CASH PROVIDED (USED) BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES 11,244$                    (33,629)$                   

ALAMOSA COUNTY, COLORADO
PROPRIETARY FUND

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

For the Year Ended December 31, 2016

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this financial statement.
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TREASURER'S

AGENCY

FUND

ASSETS

  Cash and Cash Equivalents 1,021,791$          

TOTAL ASSETS 1,021,791$          

LIABILITIES

  Funds Held For Others 801,791$             

  Due to General Fund 220,000               

TOTAL LIABILITIES 1,021,791$          

ALAMOSA COUNTY, COLORADO
FIDUCIARY FUNDS

STATEMENT OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

December 31, 2016

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this financial statement.
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ALAMOSA COUNTY, COLORADO  
NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS  

December 31, 2016 
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NOTE 1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES  
 
The accounting and reportin g policies of the County reflected in the accompanying financial statements conform to 
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America applicable to state and local governments. 
Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America for local governments are those 
promulgated by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) in Governmental Accounting and Financial 
Reporting Standards.   

 
REPORTING ENTITY 
 

Primary Government  

The County is a political subdivision organized under the statutes of the State of Colorado. The County is governed 
by a three-member Board of County Commissioners (the Board). Each commissioner is elected at-large by the voters 
of the County to represent one of the three separate districts and must reside in the district for which he or she is 
elected. There are also six other elected officials - assessor, clerk and recorder, coroner, sheriff, district attorney, and 
treasurer. The treasurer is also the County Public Trustee.  
 
The County provides a wide range of services to its residents including general administration, public safety, 
highways and streets, parks and open spaces, health and social services, public improvements, planning, zoning, and 
predatory animal control.  
 
Component Units 

The County’s combined financial statements include the accounts of all County operations. The criteria for including 
organizations as component units within the County’s reporting entity, as set forth in Section 2100 of GASB’s 
Codification of Governmental Accounting and Financial Reporting Standards,  include whether:  

§ The organization is legally separate (can sue and be sued in their own name) 

§ The County holds the corporate powers of the organization  

§ The County appoints a voting majority of the organization’s board 

§ The County is able to impose its will on the organization  

§ The organization has the potential to impose a financial benefit/burden on the County 

§ There is fiscal dependency by the organization on the County 

§ The organization is financiall y accountable to the County 

§ The organization receives or holds funds that are for the benefit of the County; and the County has access 
to a majority of the funds held; and the funds that are accessible are also significant to the County.  

The Northwest Weed Control District was voted into existence in 1989. In 1992, the Alamosa County Commissioners 
assumed administration of the District and tax revenue received by the fund. The District is blended into the County’s 
financial statements as a special revenue fund. 
 
The Mosca General Improvement District operates a sewer system in Mosca, Colorado. The County Commissioners 
administer the District and funds from the supplement user charges received by the fund. The District is blended into 
the County’s financial statements as an enterprise fund. 
 
The Alamosa County Events and Facilities Local Marketing District was voted into existence November 3, 2003. 
The County Commissioners administer the District and tax revenue received by the fund. The District is blended into 
the County’s financial statements as a special revenue fund. 
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GOVERNMENT -WIDE AND FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS  
 

The government -wide financial statements include the Statement of Net Position and the Statement of Activities. 
Government -wide statements report information on all of the activities of the County and its component units, except 
for County fiduciary activity. The effect of interfund transfers has been removed from the government -wide 
statements but continues to be reflected on the fund statements. Mainly taxes and intergovernmental revenues support 
governmental activities.  
 
The statement of activities reflects the degree to which the direct expenses of a given function are offset by program 
revenues. Direct expenses are those that are clearly identifiable with a specific function. Program revenues include:  

§ Charges to customers or applicants who purchase, use, or directly benefit from goods, services, or 
privileges provided by a given function or segment and  

§ Grants and contributions that are restricted to meeting the operational or capital requirements of a 
particular function or segment. Taxes and other items not properly included in program revenues are 
reported as general revenues.  

Separate financial statements are provided for governmental funds, proprietary funds, and fiduciary funds, even 
though the fiduciary funds are excluded from the government -wide financial statements. Major individual 
governmental funds are reported as separate columns in the fund financial statements.  

 
MEASUREMENT FOCUS, BASIS OF ACCOUNTING, AND FINANCIAL STATEMENT PRESENTATION  
 
The government -wide financial statements are reported using the economic resources measurement focus and the 
accrual basis of accounting. This measurement is also used for the proprietary fund financial statements. Revenues 
are recorded when earned and expenses are recorded when a liability is incurred, regardless of the timing of related 
cash flows. Property taxes are recognized as revenues in the year for which they are levied. Grants are recognized as 
revenue when all applicable eligibility requirements imposed by the provider are met. 
 
Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current financial resources measurement focus and the 
modified accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recognized as soon as they are both measurable and available. 
Revenues are considered available when they are collectible within the current period or soon enough thereafter to 
pay liabilities of the current period. For this purpose, the County considers revenues to be available if they are 
collected within 60 days of the end of the current fiscal period. Expenditures are generally recorded when a liability 
is incurred, as under accrual accounting. However, debt service expenditures, as well as expenditures related to 
compensated absences and claims and judgments, are recorded only when payment is due. 

The County reports the following major governmental funds:  

§ The General Fund is the general operating fund of the County. It accounts for all financial resources of 
the general government, except those required to be accounted for in another fund. 

§ The Road and Bridge Fund is used to account for the maintenance and improvements of streets and 
highways. The sources of funds include property taxes, highway users fees, and other revenue sources.  

§ The Social Services Fund is used to account for the operations of social programs; i.e. Temporary Aid 
to Needy Families, Old Age Pension, Aide to the Blind, Aide to the Needy and Disabled, among others. 
Financing is provided by grants, allotments, and property tax revenue.  

§ The Public Health Fund is used to account for the multiple programs of providing health services. 
Financing is provided by grants and fees for services.  
 

§ The Justice Center Fund is used to account for sales taxes collected to meet the statutory obligations of 
the County to provide adequate judicial and detention facilities.  
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§ The Facilities Expansion Fund, a Capital Projects fund, is used to account for the facility construction 
projects of Alamosa County.  

 
Proprietary fund financial statements are used to account for activities, which are similar to those often found in the 
private sector. The measurement focus is dependent upon determination of net income, financial position, and cash 
flows. The County’s proprietary funds consist of an enterprise fund and an internal service fund described as follows:  

§ The Mosca General Improvement District Fund is an enterprise fund used to provide quality sewer 
service to the residents of Mosca. The District is supported by fees of the users. Expenses are for 
operation and repair of the sewage system.  

§ The Health Insurance Fund is an internal service fund used to account for the County’s group medical 
insurance program. Revenues are derived from County contributions and employee contributions. 
Expenses are for the purchase of health insurance premiums.  

 
The proprietary fund is accounted for using the accrual basis of accounting as follows:  

§ Revenues are recognized when earned and expenses are recognized when the liabilities are incurred.  

§ Current -year contributions, administrative expenses, and premium payments, which are not received or 
paid until the subsequent year, are accrued.  

 
Proprietar y funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from nonoperating items. Operating revenues and 
expenses generally result from providing services and producing and delivering goods in connection with a 
proprietary fund’s principal ongoing operations. All revenues and expenses not meeting this definition are reported 
as nonoperating revenues and expenses.  
 
Fiduciary fund financial statements consist of the Treasurer's Agency Fund established to record transactions relating 
to assets held by the County as an agent for individuals, governmental entities, and non-public organizations. Agency 
funds are custodial in nature (assets equal liabilities) and do not involve measurement of results of operations.  
 
Certain eliminations have been made as prescribed by GASB Statement No. 34 in regards to interfund activities, 
payables, and receivables. All internal balances in the statement of net position  have been eliminated.  In the statement 
of activities, internal service fund transactions have been eliminated.  

 
ASSETS, LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES, AND NET POSITION / FUND BALANCE 

 
Cash 

The County’s cash and cash equivalents are considered to be cash on hand, demand deposits, and short-term 
investments with original maturities of three months or less from the date of acquisition.  
 
Investments  

All investments, if any, are recorded at fair market value.  
 
Property Taxes 

Property taxes attach as an enforceable lien on property as of January 1 each year. The taxes are payable in two 
installments on February 28 and June 15 or in full on April 30. The County Treasurer bills and collects all property 
taxes for the County. Property tax revenue is recognized by the County to the extent it results in a current receivable. 
The 2016 property tax levy due January 1, 2017, has been recorded in the financial  statements as a receivable and 
corresponding deferred inflow of resources in the financial statements.  
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Receivables/Payables from Other County Funds  

Balances that originate from current lending/borrowing arrangements between funds are referred to as “Due To/From 
Other Funds.”  
 
Inventories and Prepaid Items 

Inventory is valued at the lower of cost (first -in, first-out) or market. Inventory in the special revenue funds consists 
of expendable supplies held for use. Reported inventories are equally offset by nonspendable fund balance, which 
indicates that they do not constitute "available spendable resources" even though they are a component of net current 
assets. Inventory policy on government -wide statements is consistent with fund statements.  
 
Certain payments to vendors reflect costs applicable to future accounting periods and are recorded as prepaid items 
in both government -wide and fund financial statements.  
 
Capital Assets 

Capital Assets, which include land, buildings and improvements, equipment, construction in progress, and 
infrastructure assets (e.g. roads, bridges, sidewalks, and similar items), are reported in the applicable governmental 
activities columns in the government -wide financial statements. The County defines capital assets as assets with an 
initial, individual cost of more than $5,000. Capital assets are recorded at historical cost or estimated historical cost 
if purchased or constructed. Donated capital assets are recorded at estimated fair market value at the date of donation. 
The costs of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the asset or materially extend assets lives 
are not capitalized.  Capital assets are depreciated using the straight -line method over the following estimated useful 
lives:  

Assets  Years 
Building   35-50 
Furniture & Fixtures   5-10 
General Equipment   3-20 
Vehicles   5-15 
Infrastructure   5-50 

 
Long-Term Obligations  

Long-term debt and other long-term obligations are recorded as liabilities in the government -wide financial 
statements. In the fund financial statements for governmental fund types, debt proceeds are reported as other financing 
sources and debt payments are reported as debt service expenditures . 
 
Compensated Absences  

County employees may earn and accumulate unused vacation and sick leave benefits. All vacation and sick leave pay 
is accrued when incurred in the government -wide financial statements. A liabili ty is reported in governmental funds 
only if they have matured, for example as a result of employee resignations or retirements.  
 
Deferred Inflows of Resources  

In addition to liabilities, the statement of net position reports a separate section of deferred inflows of resources. This 
separate financial statement element, deferred inflows of resources, represents an acquisition of net position that 
applies to future periods and will not be recognized as an inflow of resources (revenue) until that time. 
 

Encumbrances  

The County does not record purchase orders in the accounting system until invoices are ready for payment. 
Unfulfilled purchase commitments outstanding at the end of the budget year are rebudgeted in the succeeding year. 
End of the year fund balance intended to be used in the succeeding year is reported as designated fund balance.  
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Net Position  

Net position represents the difference between assets, deferred outflows of resources, liabilities, and deferred inflows 
of resources. Net position should be displayed in the following three components:  

§ Net investment in capital assets  – consists of capital assets, net accumulated depreciation, reduced by the 
outstanding balances of any borrowings that are attributable to the acquisition, construction, or 
improvement of those assets. Deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources that are 
attributable to the acquisition, construction, or improvement of those assets or related debt should be 
included in this component of net position.  

§ Restricted  – consists of restricted assets reduced by liabilities and deferred inflows of resources related 
to those assets. Restricted assets consist of assets that have limitations imposed on their use either through 
enabling legislation or through external  restrictions imposed by creditors, grantors, or laws or regulations 
of other governments.  

§ Unrestricted  – consists of net amount of assets, deferred outflows of resources, liabilities, and deferred 
inflows of resources that are not included in the determin ation of net investment in capital assets or the 
restricted components of net position.  

 
Fund Balance  

Fund balances are classified based on the extent to which the District is bound to honor constraints for the specific 
purposes on which amounts in the fund can be spent.  Fund balances are classified in one of the five categories:  

§ Nonspendable Fund Balance – amounts that cannot be spent because they are not in spendable form-
such as inventory and prepaid insurance.  

§ Restricted Fund Balance – amounts with constraints placed on the use of resources are either (a) 
externally imposed by creditors, grantors, contributors, or laws or regulations of other governments or 
(b) imposed by law through constitutional provisions or enabling legislation.  

§ Committed Fund Balance – amounts that can only be used for specific purposes as a result of constraints 
imposed through resolution by the Board of County Commissioners, the highest level of decision making 
authority.  Committed amounts cannot be used for any other purpose unless the Board removes those 
constraints by taking the same type of action.  Committed fund balances differ from restricted balances 
because the constraints on their use do not come from outside parties, constitutional provisions, or 
enabling legislati on. 

§ Assigned Fund Balance – amounts a government intends to use for a specific purpose; intent can be 
expressed by the Board of County Commissioners or by an official or body to which the governing body 
delegates the authority.  

§ Unassigned Fund Balance – amounts that are available for any purpose; these amounts are reported only 
in the General Fund. 
 

When an expenditure is incurred for purposes for which both restricted and unrestricted net position/fund balance is 
available, the County considers restricted funds to have been spent first.  When an expenditure is incurred for which 
committed, assigned, and unassigned fund balances are available, the County considers amounts to have been spent 
first out of committed funds, then assigned funds, and finally unassigned funds, as needed, unless the Board of County 
Commissioners has provided otherwise in its commitment or assignment actions.  
 

Use of Estimates  

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles requires 
management to make estimates and assumptions that affect certain reported amounts and disclosures. Actual results 
could differ from those estimates.  
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Change in Accounting Principle  

GASB Statement No. 72 

The County has adopted the provisions of GASB No.72, Fair Value Measurement and Application.  Those 
requirements result in enhanced comparability of financial statements among governments by requiring measurement 
of certain assets and liabilities at fair value using a consistent and more detailed definition of fair value and accepted 
valuation techniques.  This statement will also enhance fair value application guidance and related disclosures in 
order to provide information to financial statement users about the impact of fair value measurements on  a  
government’s financial position.  
 
 
NOTE 2 STEWARDSHIP, COMPLIANCE, AND ACCOUNTABILITY  

 
Budgets and Budgetary Accounting  

Alamosa County follows the procedures set forth in the Colorado Local Government Budget Law when preparing 
the annual budget for each fund. Budget procedures include:  

§ Preparation of budget documents by administrative staff, which shall be submitted to the Board no later 
than October 15 of each year. 

§ Publication of a notice stating that the budget is available for public inspection.  

§ Discussion of the budget in a meeting open to the public.  

§ Adoption of the budget in a public meeting by appropriate resolution, no later than December 31. 
 
Formal budgetary integration is employed as a management control device for all funds of the County.  All budgets 
are adopted on a basis consistent with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP).   
 
The total expenditures for each fund cannot exceed the budgeted amount unless a supplemental appropriation is 
adopted. The Board of County Commissi oners adopted supplemental appropriations during 2016.  
 
All budget amounts presented in the accompanying supplementary information reflect the original budget and the 
final amended budget.  
 
 
NOTE 3 CASH, DEPOSITS, AND INVESTMENTS  
 
A summary of cash and investments for the County are as follows:  

Cash on hand 3,400$            

Cash deposited with banks 9,448,334       

Investments 29,003,572     

Total cash, deposits, and investments: (book balance) 38,455,306     

Less: amounts related to Treasurer's Agency Fund (1,021,791)     

Total cash, deposits, and investments on Statement of Net Position 37,433,515$   

 
Cash and Deposits  

Colorado State Statutes govern the County's deposits of cash. The statutes specify eligible depositories for public 
cash deposits, which must be Colorado institutions and must maintain federal insurance (FDIC) on deposits held.  
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The Colorado Public Deposi t Protection Act (PDPA) requires that all units of local government deposit cash in 
eligible public depositories determined by state regulators. Amounts on deposit in excess of federal insurance levels 
must be collateralized in accordance with the PDPA. PDPA allows the institution to create a single collateral pool for 
all public funds to be maintained by another institution or held in trust for all the uninsured public deposits as a group. 
The market value of the collateral must be at least equal to the aggregate uninsured deposits.  
 
Custodial Credit Risk – Deposits  

Custodial credit risk is the risk that in the event of a bank failure, the County’s deposits may not be returned to it. The 
County does not have a deposit policy for custodial credit risk. At December 31, 2016, $8,802,127  was exposed to 
custodial credit risk. Deposits exposed to credit risk are collateralized with securities held by the pledging financial 
instituti ons through PDPA. 
 
Investments  

The County’s investment policy and Colorado statutes specify investment instruments meeting defined rating and 
risk criteria in which local government entities may invest. They include:  

§ Obligations of the United States and certain U.S. Government agency securities  

§ Certain international agency securities  

§ General obligation and revenue bonds of U.S. local government entities  

§ Bankers’ acceptances of certain banks 

§ Commercial paper 

§ Local government investment pools 

§ Repurchase agreements  

§ Money market funds 

§ Guaranteed investments contracts  

§ Corporate or bank debt issued by eligible corporations or banks 
 
Custodial Credit Risk - Investments  

The County’s investment policy calls for investment diversification within the portfolio to avoid unreasonable risks 
inherent in over investing in specific instruments, individual financial institutions or maturities. The policy allows for 
the investment in local government investment pools.  
 
Interest Rate Risk 

Colorado Revised Statutes and the County’s investment policy limit investment maturities to five years or less from 
the date of purchase. This limit on investment maturities is a means of limiting exposure to fair values arising from 
increasing interest rates.  
 
Fair Value 

Fair value investments classified at Level 1 of the fair value hierarchy are valued using prices quoted in active markets 
for those securities.  Fair value investments classified as Level 2 of the fair value hierarchy are valued using the active 
market rates for the underlying securities.  Fair value investments classified as Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy are 
valued using non-observable inputs.  
 
Colorado Government Liquid Asset Trust (ColoTrust) is an investment vehicle established for local government 
entities in Colorado pursuant to Part 7 of Article 75 of Title 24 of the Colorado Revised Statutes, to pool surplus 
funds for investment purposes. ColoTrust  operates similarly to a money market fund and each share is equal in value 
to $1.00. The fair value of the position in the pool is the same as the value of the pool shares. The designated custodial 
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bank provides safekeeping and depository services in connection with the direct investment and withdrawal functions.   
Substantially all securities owned by the pool are held by the Federal Reserve Bank in the account maintained for the 
custodial bank. The custodian’s internal records identify the investments owned by the pool. Investments of the pools 
consist of U.S. Treasury bills, notes and note strips, and repurchase agreements collateralized by U.S. Treasury Notes.   
This investment is valued using level 2 inputs.  
 
Colorado Statewide Investment Program (CSIP) is a money market mutual fund.  Portfolio investments are assigned 
a level based upon the observability of the inputs which are significant to the overall valuation.  The inputs or 
methodology used for valuing securities are not necessarily an indication of the risk associated with investing in those 
securities.  The fair value of investments in money market funds is based on the published net asset values per share 
of those funds.  Money market securities are valued using amortized cost.  Generally, amortized cost approximates 
the current fair value of a security, but since the value is not obtained from a quoted price in an active market, such 
securities held by Prime Series and Government Series are categorized as Level 2. 

Fair Value 

Measurements 

Using: 

Up to 121 Days to

Investment Type Rating 120 Days 5 Years Level 2

Sigma Certificates of Deposit 2% (un-rated) -$               498,861$        498,861$              

SIGMA Money Market 0% (un-rated) 2,152                    

CSIP 1% AAAm 147,406                

ColoTrust 98% AAAm 28,355,153           

28,504,711           

29,003,572$         

 
 
NOTE 4 ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE  

 
Accounts receivable at December 31, 2016, consisted of the following:  

Governmental Activities

General Fund Miscellaneous Receivable 2,086$            

Public Health Nurse (net of allowance for 

   doubtful accounts of $26,569) 407,563          

Nonmajor Funds 9,000              

Total Governmental Activities Accounts Receivable, net 418,649          

Business-type Activities

Mosca General Improvement District 8,086              

Total Accounts Receivable, net 426,735$        
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NOTE 5 PROPERTY TAXES RECEIVABLE  
 
At December 31, 2016, the County had an estimated property tax receivable divided among the funds as follows:  

General Fund 3,499,320$     

Road and Bridge Fund 29,514            

Social Services Fund 585,750          

Nonmajor Funds 65,657            

4,180,241$     

 
 

NOTE 6 INTERFUND RECEIVABLES, PAYABLES, AND TRANSFERS  
 
Interfund Receivables/Payables  

The County reports interfund balances between many of its funds. The balances resulted from the time lag between 
the dates that (1) interfund goods and services are provided or reimbursable expenditures occur, (2) transactions are 
recorded in the accounting system, and (3) payments between funds are made. Interfund balances are generally 
expected to be repaid within one year of the financial statement date.   
 
Interfund receivable and payable balances at December 31, 2016, were as follows:  

Receivable Fund Payable Fund Amount

General Fund Conservation Trust Fund 2,478$            

Justice Center 600,000          

Treasurer's Agency Fund 220,000          

822,478          

Social Services Public Health 42,570            

Road and Bridge General Fund 10,000            

Facilities Expansion Justice Center 455,025          

1,330,073$     

 
Interfund Transfers  

Interfund transfers for the year ended December 31, 2016, were as follows:  

Transfer In Transfer Out Amount

General Fund Justice Center 600,000$        

Facilities Expansion Fund Justice Center 868,373          

1,468,373$     

 
Transfers were made from the Justice Center Fund to reimburse the General Fund for sheriff’s expenditures and the 
Facilities Expansion Fund for construction expenditures.  
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NOTE 7 CAPITAL ASSETS 
 

Capital asset activity for the year ended December 31, 2016, was as follows:  

Balance Balance

12/31/2015 Additions Deletions 12/31/2016

Governmental Activities:

Capital assets not being depreciated:

  Land 424,869$        -$                   -$                   424,869$        

  Construction in Progress -                     939,379          -                     939,379          

Total capital assets not being depreciated 424,869          939,379          -                     1,364,248       

Capital assets being depreciated

  Buildings and Improvements 16,037,378     -                     -                     16,037,378     

  Furniture and Equipment 5,600,332       803,966          450,294          5,954,004       

  Vehicles 1,628,376       167,409          148,126          1,647,659       

  Infrastructure 19,729,864     -                     -                     19,729,864     

Total capital assets being depreciated 42,995,950     971,375          598,420          43,368,905     

Less accumulated depreciation for:

  Buildings 5,512,814       324,382          -                     5,837,196       

  Furniture and Equipment 4,564,433       439,940          448,999          4,555,374       

  Vehicles 1,457,455       45,410            141,048          1,361,817       

  Infrastructure 15,050,073     496,953          -                     15,547,026     

Total accumulated depreciation 26,584,775     1,306,685       590,047          27,301,413     

Total capital assets being depreciated, net 16,411,175     (335,310)        8,373              16,067,492     

Governmental Activities Capital Assets, Net 16,836,044$   604,069$        8,373$            17,431,740$   

Business Type Activities:

Capital assets not being depreciated:

  Construction in Progress -$                   20,092$          -$                   20,092$          

Business Type Activities Capital Assets, Net -$                   20,092$          -$                   20,092$          

 
Depreciation expense was charged to functions/programs of the primary government as follows:  

Governmental Activities:

  General Government 187,516$        

  Public Safety 176,811          

  Health and Welfare 159,575          

  Highways and Streets 755,373          

  Culture and Recreation 27,410            

1,306,685$     
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NOTE 8 OPERATING LEASES  
 
The County has entered into several operating lease arrangements for several copy machines, postage machines, 
procurement of software, and computer services. Rental Expense for all operating leases for the year ended December 
31, 2016, was approximately $154,670 . 
 
 
NOTE 9 LONG-TERM LIABILITIES  
 
Changes in Long-term Liabilities  

Long-term liability activity for the year ended December 31, 2016, was as follows:  

12/31/2015 12/31/2016 Due Within

Balance Additions Deletions Balance One Year

Governmental Activities

  Lease Purchase Agreements 3,079,728$     22,179,053$  392,680$     24,866,101$  1,146,606$  

  Note Payable 265,000          -                    21,856         243,144         23,027         

  Premium on COP's -                     2,430,660      -                   2,430,660      127,929       

  Compensated Absences 367,671          50,375           -                   418,046         32,336         

Total Governmental Activities 3,712,399$     24,660,088$  414,536$     27,957,951$  1,329,898$  

 
Lease Purchase Agreements  
 
2011 Alamosa County and Caterpillar Financial Services Leases 

Two Lease Purchase Agreements, dated January 26, 2011, were entered into between Caterpillar Financial Services, 
as lessor, and Alamosa County (the “County”), as lessee, for the purchase of two Caterpillar Motor Graders. Payments 
are due in monthly installments of $1,799, which includes interest at a rate of 3.5%. Final payments were made in 
February 2016 from the Road and Bridge Fund. Principal balance at December 31, 2016 was $0. The equipment is 
included in capital assets at a cost of $433,300 with accumulated depreciation of $371,400 . 
 
2012 Alamosa County and Caterpillar Financial Services Leases 

A Lease Purchase agreement, dated January 12, 2012, was entered into with Caterpillar Financial Services, as 
lessor, and Alamosa County, as lessee in the amount of $176,800 for the purchase of a Caterpillar Motor Grader. 
Payments are due in monthly installments of $1,695, which include interest at a rate of 3.20%. Final payment is due 
in February 2017. Payments were made from the Road and Bridge Fund. Principal balance at December 31, 2016, 
was $101,836. The equipment is included in capital assets at a cost of $193,050 with accumulated depreciation of 
$135,596 . 
 
A Lease Purchase agreement, dated January 18, 2012, was entered into with Caterpillar Financial Services, as lessor, 
and Alamosa County, as lessee in the amount of $209,300 for the purchase of a Caterpillar Motor Grader. Payments 
are due in monthly installments of $2,010, which include interest at a rate of 3.20%. Final payment is due in February 
2017. Payments were made from the Road and Bridge Fund. Principal balance at December 31, 2016, was $118,199 . 
The equipment is included in capital assets at a cost of $193,050 with accumulated depreciation of $135,596 . 
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2013 Alamosa County Services and Department of Human Services Building Lease  

An annually renewable Lease Purchase Agreement, dated December 9, 2013, was entered into between a Bank, as 
lessor, and Alamosa County (the “County”), as lessee. The Bank issued $2,735,000 to the County to construct the 
new Annex building. The County is leasing the Department of Social Services building back at 3.9% interest via the 
Lease Purchase Agreement. The County used the proceeds to repay the 2009 lease purchase agreement and to 
construct the new Annex building on land owned by the County and located in Alamosa, Colorado for the housing 
of County offices. The building is included in capital assets at a cost of $3,230,870 with accumulated depreciation of 
$484,631 . 
 
Payments are due to the Bank in March, June, September, and December through December 2033. The County can 
purchase the building back at any time for the Purchase Option Price included in the lease. Payments will be made 
from the Lease Service Fund. Principal balance at December 31, 2016, was $2,447,271.  
 
2014 Alamosa County and Alamosa State Bank Vehicle Lease 
A Lease Purchase agreement, dated March 24, 2014, was entered into with Alamosa State Bank, as lessor, and 
Alamosa County, as lessee in the amount of $71,557 for the purchase of two 2014 Dodge 1500 Pickup Trucks. 
Payments are due in annual installments of $20,432, which include interest at a rate of 3.50%. Final payment is due 
in April 2017. Payments were made from the General Fund. Principal balance at December 31, 2016, was $19,742. 
The equipment is included in capital assets at a cost of $76,608 with accumulated depreciation of $29,184 . 
 
2016 Justice Center Lease Agreement  

An annually renewable Lease Purchase Agreement, dated October 15, 2016, was entered into between UMB Bank, 
as lessor,  and Alamosa County, as lessee.  UMB Bank issued $21,735,000 of Certificates of Participation Series 2016 
to finance the acquisition, construction, installation, and equipping of various public improvements, and paying the 
costs of issuance by UMB Bank. The buildings will be leased to the County from UMB Bank under the Lease 
Agreement, dated October 15, 2016. The justice center is included in construction in progress at $939,379 at 
December 31, 2016. 
 
The County will make lease payments to UMB Bank and UMB Bank will use those funds to pay the principal and 
interest payments prescribed by the Certifica tes of Participation document. Payments on these Certificates of 
Participation will be funded from the judicial and detention sales tax. Principal repayments will begin November  15, 
2017, and will finish on November 15, 2035. The interest rate ranges from 2.00% to 5.00% and will be paid semi-
annually. The cost of issuing the Certificates of Participation was $197,562.  
 
As of December 31, 2016, the County had $23,781,233 in a trust account held by UMB Bank for the construction of 
the 12th Judicial Courthouse and Jail/Detention Center improvements.  
 
2016 Alamosa County and John Deere Financial Services Leases 

A Lease Purchase agreement, dated February 11, 2016, was entered into with John Deere Financial Services, as 
lessor, and Alamosa County, as lessee in the amount of $444,053 for the purchase of two John Deere Motor 
Graders. Payments are due in annual instal lments of $97,789, which include interest at a rate of 3.25%. Final 
payment is due in February 2021. Principal balance at December 31, 2016, was $444,053. The equipment is 
included in capital assets at a cost of $444,053 with accumulated depreciation of $58,148.  
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The annual debt service for the leases, are as follows:  

Principal Interest Total

2017 1,146,606$     1,089,530$     2,236,136$     

2018 1,013,676       981,609          1,995,285       

2019 1,040,772       949,913          1,990,685       

2020 1,082,903       909,182          1,992,085       

2021 1,125,760       866,325          1,992,085       

2022-2026 5,771,062       3,703,588       9,474,650       

2027-2031 7,146,984       2,321,866       9,468,850       

2032-2033 6,538,338       644,810          7,183,148       

24,866,101$   11,466,823$   36,332,924$   

 
Note Payable  
 
2015 Alamosa County Depot and Motorway Building Note 

A note payable, with a cancellation clause for annual non-appropriation , dated December 23, 2015, was entered into 
between a Bank and The Alamosa County Events and Facilities Local Marking District. The Bank issued $265,000 
to the District to pay off the 2007 Depot and Motorway Building Lease and the 2014 Alamosa County Depot and 
Motorway Building Note. Payments are due monthly in the amount $2,662, which includes interest at a rate of 
3.750%. Payments will begin in February 2016 and will be made from the Local Marketing District Fund. Principal 
balance at December 31, 2016 was $243,144. The building is included in capital assets at a cost of $973,900 with 
accumulated depreciation of $158,460 . 
 
The annual debt service for the notes, are as follows:  

Principal Interest Total

2017 23,027$          8,916$            31,943$          

2018 23,918            8,025              31,943            

2019 24,844            7,100              31,944            

2020 25,787            6,157              31,944            

2021 26,803            5,141              31,944            

2022-2026 118,765          9,010              127,775          

243,144$        44,349$          287,493$        

 
 
NOTE 10 DEFINED CONTRIBUTION PLAN 
 
All eligible employees, participate in the Colorado County Officials and Employees Retirement Association 
(CCOERA) (the Plan), a defined contribution plan, authorized by state statute. The Plan is a tax qualified plan under 
Section 401(a) of the Internal Revenue Code and all contributions by or on behalf of employees are tax deferred until 
time of withdrawal.  
 
Employees are eligible after completing twelve months of service with Alamosa County, and participation is 
mandatory after one year of employment. Employee and employer contributions are 100% vested immediately upon 
employee participation in the plan.  
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The County must contribute 4% of the compensation of each participant. Each participant contributes a minimum 
amount equal to the County's contribution, and is permitted to make additional contributions not to exceed 10% of 
their compensation. For the year ended December 31, 2016, employee contributions totaled $249,895  and the County 
recognized pension expense of $249,895 . The County recognized $0 of forfeitures in retirement expense during 2016. 
 
Plan benefits depend solely on amounts contributed to the plan plus investment earnings, less administrative expenses. 
The Plan may be amended by resolution of the Board of County Commissioners but it may not be amended beyond 
the limits established by state statute.  
 
 
NOTE 11  DEFERRED COMPENSATION PLAN 
 
The County also offers its employees an addition al voluntary deferred compensation plan created in accordance with 
Internal Revenue Code 457(f), administered by Colorado County Officials and Employees Retirement Association 
(CCOERA) (the Plan).  
 
The Plan permits the employees to defer a portion of their salary until future years. The deferred compensation is not 
available to employees until termination, retirement, death, or unforeseeable emergencies. The County has no other 
liability other than to make the required monthly contribution.  
 
 
NOTE 12 COLORADO CONTRABAND FORFEITURE ACT 
 
We have reviewed financial activities in the Sheriff’s Department for compliance with the above referenced act. 
There were no sales of contraband during the year ended December 31, 2016. 
 
 
NOTE 13 TABOR AMENDMENT RESERVE  
 
Colorado voters passed an amendment to the State Constitution, Article X, Section 20, which has several limitations, 
including revenue raising, spending abilities, and other specific requirements of state and local governments. The 
amendment is complex and subject to judicial interpretation. The County believes it is in compliance with the 
requirements of the amendment.  
 
Fiscal year spending and revenue limits are determined based on the prior year’s spending adjusted for inflation and 
local growth. The voters of the County have approved a measure that allows the County to retain and spend revenue 
in excess of the limit.  
 
The amendment also requires that Emergency Reserves be established. These reserves must be at least three percent 
of fiscal year spending . The Emergency Reserve has been presented as restricted fund balance/net position in the 
financial statements. The County is not allowed to use the Emergency Reserves to compensate for economic 
conditions, revenue shortfalls, or salary or benefit increase s. 
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NOTE 14 RISK MANAGEMENT  
 
Colorado Counties Casualty and Property Pool (CAPP) 

The County is exposed to various risks of loss related to property and casualty losses. The County joined together 
with other counties in the State of Colorado to form the Colorado Counties Casualty and Property Pool (CAPP), a 
public entity risk pool currently operating as a common risk management and insurance program for member 
counties. The County pays an annual contribution to CAPP for its property and casualty insurance coverage. The 
inter-governmental agreement of formation of CAPP provides that the pool will be financially self-sustaining through 
member contributions and additional assessments, if necessary, and the Pool will purchase excess insurance through 
commercial companies for members' claims in excess of a specified self-insured retention that is determined each 
policy year. There have been no significant reductions in insurance coverage. Settled claims from these risks have 
not exceeded insurance coverage for the current year or the three prior years.  
 
At December 31, 2016, CAPP had assets of $25,380,003 , liabilities of $9,842,724  (including $7,179,370  reserved for 
losses and claims), and members’ equity of $15,537,279 . The liability amount includes no long-term debt. Total 
revenues for the year ended December 31, 2016, amounted to $6,644,912  and total expenses were $5,998,318 , 
resulting in net income before return of surplus of $646,594 . 
 
Colorado Workers' Compensation Pool (CWCP) 

The County is exposed to various risks of loss related to injuries of employees while on the job. The County has 
joined together with other counties in the State of Colorado to form the Colorado Workers' Compensation Pool 
(CWCP), a public entity risk pool currently operating as a common risk management and insurance program for 
member counties. The County pays an annual contribution to CWCP for its workers' compensation insurance 
coverage. The intergovernmental agreement of formation of CWCP provides that the pool will be financially self-
sustaining through member contributions and additional assessments, if necessary, and the Pool will purchase excess 
insurance through commercial companies for members' claims in excess of a specified self-insured retention that is 
determined each policy year. There have been no significant reductions in insurance coverage. Settled claims from 
these risks have not exceeded insurance coverage for the current year or the three prior years.  
  
At December 31, 2016, CWCP had assets of $41,463,1 22, liabilities of $22,425,987  (including $21,026,093  reserved 
for losses and claims) and members’ equity of $19,037,135 . The liability amount includes no long-term debt. Total 
revenues for the year ended December 31, 2016, amounted to $11,305,540 , total expenses were $8,548,795 , resulting 
in net income before return of surplus of $2,756,745 . 
 
 
NOTE 15 JOINT VENTURES  
 
San Luis Valley Regional Solid Waste Authority  

The San Luis Valley Regional Solid Waste Authority was created by an intergovernmental agreement between Rio 
Grande County and Alamosa County on April 14, 1995, pursuant to the authority granted by C.R.S. 29-1-203. It has 
been designated as a joint venture under the provisions of GASB Statement No. 14. Its purpose is to provide the 
citizens of both counties an integrated municipal solid waste disposal facility in accordance with provision of C.R.S. 
30-20-1005. 
 
The Authority is governed by a Board of Directors consisti ng of five members as follows: one Rio Grande County 
Commissioner, one Alamosa County Commissioner, one director appointed by the City of Monte Vista, one director 
appointed by the City of Alamosa, and one director who is a member of the Rio Grande County Land Use or 
administrative staff as appointed by the Rio Grande County Commissioners.  
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It is the intent of the counties that the initial funding of the Authority by each county be provided on a loan basis in 
substantially the same proportion that the population of each county bears to the combined population of both 
counties. Alamosa and Rio Grande Counties may provide additional funding at any time in the future if they choose 
to do so by resolution.  
 
Closure and Post-Closure Care 

Rio Grande and Alamosa Counties are exposed to closure and post-closure expenses should the Authority be unable 
to meet those obligations when they become due. Management believes the risk of failure to be minimal. State and 
federal laws and regulations require the Authority to place a final cover on its landfill site when it stops accepting 
waste and to perform certain maintenance and monitoring functions at the site after closure. Although closure and 
post-closure care costs will be paid only near or after the date that the landfill stops accepting waste, the Authority 
reports a portion of these closure and post-closure care costs as an operating expense in each period based on landfill 
capacity used as of each balance sheet date. The Authority reported $793,166  as landfill closure and post-closure care 
liability at December 31, 2016, that represents the cumulative amount reported to date based on the use of 33% of 
the estimated capacity of the landfil l.  
 
The Authority will recognize the remaining estimated cost of closure and post-closure care of $1,618,723  as the 
remaining estimated capacity is filled. These amounts are based on what it would cost to perform all closure and post-
closure care in 2016, the most recent information available. As the Authority expects to close the landfill in the year 
2043, the remaining useful life is 27 years. Actual costs may be higher due to inflation, changes in technology, or 
changes in regulations.  
 
The most recent audited financial statements of the authority report total assets of $4,609,922 , total liabilities of 
$840,420 , and net position of $3,769,502  at December 31, 2016. 

 
The San Luis Valley Regional Solid Waste Authority issues publicly available annual financial statements. That 
report may be obtained by writing to the San Luis Valley Regional Solid Waste Authority, PO Box 861, Monte Vista, 
Colorado 81144. 
 
San Luis Valley Regional Airport  

The San Luis Valley Regional Airport is a joint venture between the City of Alamosa and Alamosa County. The joint 
venture does not meet the criteria for inclusion within the reporting entity because the Airport:  

§ is financially independent and responsible for its own financing deficits and entitled to its own surpluses,  

§ has a separate governing board equally appointed by the City and County,  

§ the governing board has the ability to significantly influence operations by approving budgetary requests 
and adjustments, signing contracts, hiring personnel, exercising control over facilities and determining 
the outcome for disposition of matters affecting the recipients of services provided, and 

§ has absolute authority over all funds and fiscal responsibility and reporting to State and controls fiscal 
management.  

 
The County has one member on the three-member board. The Board has final authority for all budgeting and financing 
of the joint venture. The County's share of the joint venture is 50% at December 31, 2016.  
 
The most recent audited financial statements of the airport report total assets of $5,297,067 , total liabilities of 
$204,384 , and net position of $5,092,683 at December 31, 2015. 
 
The San Luis Valley Regional Airport issues publicly available annual financial statements. That report may be 
obtained by writing to the San Luis Valley Regional Airport, P.O. Box 328, Alamosa, Colorado 81101. 
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On January 1, 2017, the San Luis Valley Regional Airport Board of Authority  was dissolved and will be included in 
the County’s financial statements as an enterprise fund for the year ended December 31, 2017. 
 
 
NOTE 16 COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES  
 
Grant Programs  – The County participates in a number of federal and state grant programs. These programs are 
subject to program compliance audits by the grantors or their representatives. The amount of expenditures, if any, 
which may be disallowed by the granting agencies cannot be determined at this time although the County expects 
any such amounts to be immaterial.  
 
Insurance Pools  – The County is a member of the Colorado Counties Casualty and Property Pool (CAPP) and the 
Colorado Workers' Compensation Pool (CWCP). CAPP and CWCP have a legal obligation for claims against its 
members to the extent that funds are available in their annually established loss funds and amounts are available from 
insurance providers under excess specific and aggregate insurance contracts. Losses incurred in excess of loss funds 
are direct liabilities of the participating members. CAPP and CWCP have indicated that the amount of any excess 
losses would be billed to members in proportion to their contributions in the year such excess occurs. The ultimate 
liability to the County resulting from claims not covered by CAPP and CWCP is not presently determinable.   
 
Litigation  – The County is a party to various legal actions normally associated with governmental activities, the 
aggregate effect which, in management’s and legal counsel’s opinion, would not be material to the financial 
statements.  
 
Construction Project – The County is in process of constructing the Jail/Detention addition and the 12th Judicial 
Courthouse.  The estimated completion date for the Jail/Detention addition is February 2018 and remaining estimated 
cost associated with the construction is $9,531,570.  The estimated completion date for the 12th Judicial Courthouse 
is May 2019 and remaining estimated cost associated with the construction is $15,000,000. The County is using lease 
proceeds from Revenue Bonds and Energy/Mineral Impact Assistance Fund grants for the project.  
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In addition to the basic financial statements, a budgetary comparison schedule is required for the 
General Fund and, if applicable, each of the County’s major special revenue funds.  

 



VARIANCE WITH
FINAL BUDGET

POSITIVE
ORIGINAL FINAL ACTUAL (NEGATIVE)

REVENUES
  Taxes 5,707,408$ 5,707,408$ 6,041,450$ 334,042$              

  Intergovernmental Revenue 677,133      677,133      617,040      (60,093)                
  Licenses and Permits 50,150        50,150        70,110        19,960                 
  Interest on Deposits 13,000        13,000        37,551        24,551                 
  Charges for Services 679,907      679,907      858,590      178,683               
  Miscellaneous 1,136,761   1,136,761   1,089,337   (47,424)                

TOTAL REVENUES 8,264,359   8,264,359   8,714,078   449,719               

EXPENDITURES
  General Government 3,807,393   3,807,393   3,690,352   117,041               
  Public Safety 3,846,967   3,846,967   3,962,204   (115,237)              
  Judicial 246,704      246,704      246,704      -                           
  Health and Welfare -                 -                 3                 (3)                         
  Auxiliary Services 256,932      256,932      161,827      95,105                 
  Capital Outlay 215,000      215,000      54,626        160,374               

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 8,372,996   8,372,996   8,115,716   257,280               

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues Over Expenditures (108,637)     (108,637)     598,362      706,999               
  
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
  Transfers In -                 -                 600,000      600,000               
  Transfers Out (35,000)       (35,000)       -                 35,000                 

TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) (35,000)       (35,000)       600,000      635,000               

  Net Change in Fund Balance (143,637)     (143,637)     1,198,362   1,341,999             

Fund Balance at Beginning of Year 3,232,677   3,232,677   3,645,395   412,718               

Fund Balance at End of Year 3,089,040$ 3,089,040$ 4,843,757$ 1,754,717$           

Notes to Required Supplementary Information

The basis of budgeting is the same as GAAP.
The schedule is presented on the GAAP basis. 
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SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN

FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL

For the Year Ended December 31, 2016

GENERAL FUND
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VARIANCE WITH
FINAL BUDGET

POSITIVE
ORIGINAL FINAL ACTUAL (NEGATIVE)

REVENUES
  Taxes 88,717$      88,717$      99,010$      10,293$               

  Intergovernmental Revenue 2,133,487   2,133,487   2,298,198   164,711               
  Miscellaneous 155,000      255,000      183,147      (71,853)                

TOTAL REVENUES 2,377,204   2,477,204   2,580,355   103,151               

EXPENDITURES
  Highways and Streets 2,011,876   2,111,876   1,980,874   131,002               
  Capital Outlay 644,037      644,037      635,848      8,189                   
  Debt Service 369,002      369,002      280,032      88,970                 

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 3,024,915   3,124,915   2,896,754   228,161               

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues Over Expenditures (647,711)     (647,711)     (316,399)     331,312               

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
  Lease Proceeds 544,037      544,037      444,037      (100,000)              
  Sale of Capital Assets -                 -                 165,206      165,206               

TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) 544,037      544,037      609,243      65,206                 

  Net Change in Fund Balance (103,674)     (103,674)     292,844      396,518               

Fund Balance at Beginning of Year 1,652,848   1,652,848   2,014,693   361,845               

Fund Balance at End of Year 1,549,174$ 1,549,174$ 2,307,537$ 758,363$             

Notes to Required Supplementary Information

The basis of budgeting is the same as GAAP.
The schedule is presented on the GAAP basis. 

ALAMOSA COUNTY, COLORADO

BUDGETED AMOUNTS

For the Year Ended December 31, 2016

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN

FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL

ROAD AND BRIDGE FUND
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VARIANCE WITH
FINAL BUDGET

POSITIVE
ORIGINAL FINAL ACTUAL (NEGATIVE)

REVENUE

  Taxes 674,096$    674,096$    662,383$    (11,713)$              
  Intergovernmental Revenue 15,119,807 15,119,807 13,638,743 (1,481,064)           

TOTAL REVENUE 15,793,903 15,793,903 14,301,126 (1,492,777)           

EXPENDITURES
  Health and Welfare 15,629,798 15,629,798 14,155,950 1,473,848             
  Capital Outlay 1,000          1,000          67,133        (66,133)                

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 15,630,798 15,630,798 14,223,083 1,407,715             

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues Over Expenditures 163,105      163,105      78,043        (85,062)                

Fund Balance at Beginning of Year 1,506,698   1,506,698   1,422,116   (84,582)                

Fund Balance at End of Year 1,669,803$ 1,669,803$ 1,500,159$ (169,644)$            

Notes to Required Supplementary Information

The basis of budgeting is the same as GAAP.
The schedule is presented on the GAAP basis. 

ALAMOSA COUNTY, COLORADO
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For the Year Ended December 31, 2016

SOCIAL SERVICES FUND

33



VARIANCE WITH
FINAL BUDGET

POSITIVE
ORIGINAL FINAL ACTUAL (NEGATIVE)

REVENUES
  Intergovernmental Revenue 3,461,300$ 3,461,300$ 3,227,162$ (234,138)$            
  Charges for Services 182,196      182,196      252,405      70,209                 
  Miscellaneous 6,000          6,000          27,121        21,121                 

TOTAL REVENUES 3,649,496   3,649,496   3,506,688   (142,808)              

EXPENDITURES
  Health and Welfare 3,628,138   3,628,138   3,414,055   214,083               
  Capital Outlay -                 -                 73,340        (73,340)                

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 3,628,138   3,628,138   3,487,395   140,743               

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues Over Expenditures 21,358        21,358        19,293        (2,065)                  

Fund Balance at Beginning of Year 2,702,092   2,702,092   2,760,695   58,603                 

Fund Balance at End of Year 2,723,450$ 2,723,450$ 2,779,988$ 56,538$               

Notes to Required Supplementary Information

The basis of budgeting is the same as GAAP.
The schedule is presented on the GAAP basis. 

ALAMOSA COUNTY, COLORADO

BUDGETED AMOUNTS
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VARIANCE WITH
FINAL BUDGET

POSITIVE
ORIGINAL FINAL ACTUAL (NEGATIVE)

REVENUES
  Taxes 2,400,000$ 3,900,000$ 2,718,147$    (1,181,853)$         
  Intergovernmental Revenue 1,990,858   1,990,858   630,029        (1,360,829)           

TOTAL REVENUES 4,390,858   5,890,858   3,348,176     (2,542,682)           

EXPENDITURES
  Public Safety 50,000        50,000        -                    50,000                 
  Capital Outlay 4,100,000   4,100,000   180,802        3,919,198             

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 4,100,000   4,100,000   180,802        3,919,198             

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues Over Expenditures 290,858      1,790,858   3,167,374     1,376,516             

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
  Transfers Out -                 (1,500,000)  (1,468,373)    31,627                 

TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) -                 (1,500,000)  (1,468,373)    31,627                 

  Net Change in Fund Balance 290,858      290,858      1,699,001     1,408,143             

Fund Balance at Beginning of Year -                 -                 -                    -                           

Fund Balance at End of Year 290,858$    290,858$    1,699,001$    1,408,143$           

Notes to Required Supplementary Information

The basis of budgeting is the same as GAAP.
The schedule is presented on the GAAP basis. 

BUDGETED AMOUNTS

ALAMOSA COUNTY, COLORADO
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ALAMOSA COUNTY, COLORADO  
 

SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION  
 

The combining financial statements represent the second level of financial reporting for 
the County. These financial statements present more detailed information for the 

individual funds in a format that segregates information by fund type. 



Employee Equipment
General Contingency Retirement Acquisition

Fund Fund Fund Fund Eliminations Total
ASSETS
  Cash and Cash Equivalents 3,355,560$    165,076$          96,270$          258,810$          -$                   3,875,716$    
  Receivables
    Accounts Receivable 2,086            -                       -                     -                       -                     2,086            
    Property Taxes Receivable 3,334,320     -                       165,000          -                       -                     3,499,320     
  Due from Other Funds 822,478        -                       -                     41,548              (41,548)          822,478        
  Due from Other Governments 641,211        -                       -                     -                       -                     641,211        

TOTAL ASSETS 8,155,655$    165,076$          261,270$        300,358$          (41,548)$        8,840,811$    

LIABILITIES
  Accounts Payable 180,126$      -$                      -$                   -$                     -$                   180,126$      
  Due to Other Funds 51,548          -                       -                     -                       (41,548)          10,000          
  Due to Other Governments 307,608        -                       -                     -                       -                     307,608        

TOTAL LIABILITIES 539,282        -                       -                     -                       (41,548)          497,734        

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
  Unearned Revenue - Property Tax 3,334,320     -                       165,000          -                       -                     3,499,320     

FUND BALANCE
  Restricted
    TABOR Amendment Reserve 555,000        -                       -                     -                       -                     555,000        
  Committed - Equipment Acquisition -                    -                       -                     300,358            -                     300,358        
  Assigned - Designated for Future Expenditures 1,369,631     165,076            96,270            -                       -                     1,630,977     
  Unassigned 2,357,422     -                       -                     -                       -                     2,357,422     

TOTAL FUND BALANCE 4,282,053     165,076            96,270            300,358            -                     4,843,757     

TOTAL LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS
OF RESOURCES, AND FUND BALANCE 8,155,655$    165,076$          261,270$        300,358$          (41,548)$        8,840,811$    

ALAMOSA COUNTY, COLORADO
COMBINING SCHEDULE - BALANCE SHEET

GENERAL FUND

 December 31, 2016
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Employee Equipment

General Contingency Retirement Acquisition

Fund Fund Fund Fund Eliminations Total

REVENUES

  Taxes 5,886,716$    268$                     154,466$           -$                      -$                      6,041,450$         

  Intergovernmental Revenue 617,040         -                            -                         -                        -                        617,040              

  Licenses and Permits 70,110           -                            -                         -                        -                        70,110                

  Interest on Deposits 37,551           -                            -                         -                        -                        37,551                

  Charges for Services 858,590         -                            -                         -                        -                        858,590              

  Miscellaneous 1,085,788      -                            3,549                 41,548              (41,548)             1,089,337           

TOTAL REVENUES 8,555,795      268                       158,015             41,548              (41,548)             8,714,078           

EXPENDITURES

  Current Expenditures

    General Government 3,584,211      -                            147,689             -                        (41,548)             3,690,352           

    Public Safety 3,962,204      -                            -                         -                        -                        3,962,204           

    Judicial 246,704         -                            -                         -                        -                        246,704              

    Health and Welfare 3                    -                            -                         -                        -                        3                         

    Auxiliary Services 161,827         -                            -                         -                        -                        161,827              

  Capital Outlay -                     -                            -                         54,626              -                        54,626                

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 7,954,949      -                            147,689             54,626              (41,548)             8,115,716           
 

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues 

     Over Expenditures 600,846         268                       10,326               (13,078)             -                        598,362              

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)

  Transfers In 600,000         -                            -                         -                        -                        600,000              

TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) 600,000         -                            -                         -                        -                        600,000              
 

Net Change in Fund Balance 1,200,846      268                       10,326               (13,078)             -                        1,198,362           

Fund Balance at Beginning of Year 3,081,207      164,808                85,944               313,436            -                        3,645,395           

Fund Balance at End of Year 4,282,053$    165,076$              96,270$             300,358$          -$                      4,843,757$         
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ALAMOSA COUNTY, COLORADO  
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 

 
 

 

SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS 
 
Special revenue funds are used to account for and report the proceeds of specific revenue sources that are restricted 
or committed to expenditure for specified purposes other than debt service and capital projects.  
 
Conservation Trust Fund – This fund is used to account for the County share of the state lottery program. The 
monies may be expended for the acquisition, development, and maintenance of parks, and other public recreational 
facilities.  
 
Tourism and Development Fund – This fund is used to account for the County share of the lodging tax collected 
on each hotel/motel that is rented in Alamosa County. The monies may be expended to promote Alamosa County to 
tourists.  
 
Northwest Weed Control District Fund – This fund is used to provide monies for spraying of undesirable plants 
along the roads within the northwest corner of the County.  
 
Local Marketing District Fund – This fund is used to oversee the collection and disbursement of a 4% cultural and 
tourism tax on each hotel/motel  room sold in Alamosa County.  
 

CAPITAL PROJECTS FUNDS 
 

Capital projects funds are used to account for and report financial resources that are restricted, committed, or 
assigned to expenditure for capital outlays including the acquisition or construction of capital facilities and other 
capital assets.  
 
Facilities Expansion Fund – This fund is used to account for the facility construction projects of Alamosa County.  
 

DEBT SERVICE FUNDS 
 
Debt service funds are used to account for and report financial resources  that are restricted, committed, or assigned 
to expenditure for principal and interest.  
 
Lease Service Fund – This fund is used to pay the debt service on the construction of the Alamosa County 
buildings, which were financed by Lease Purchase Agreement s.  
 



DEBT
SERVICE

FUND
Northwest Local

Conservation Tourism Weed Control Marketing Lease
Trust Development District District Service
Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund TOTALS

ASSETS
  Cash and Cash Equivalents 559,667$         229,217$         167,387$         249,866$         277,937$         1,484,074$      
  Accounts Receivable -                      -                      -                      -                      9,000              9,000              
  Property Taxes Receivable -                      -                      16,467             -                      49,190             65,657             
  Due from Other Governments -                      38,904             -                      35,294             14,454             88,652             

TOTAL ASSETS 559,667$         268,121$         183,854$         285,160$         350,581$         1,647,383$      

LIABILITIES
  Accounts Payable 60$                 -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    60$                 
  Due to Other Funds 2,478              -                      -                      -                      -                      2,478              

TOTAL LIABILITIES 2,538              -                      -                      -                      -                      2,538              

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
  Unavailable Revenue - Property Tax -                      -                      16,467             -                      49,190             65,657             

FUND BALANCE
  Committed
    Debt Service -                      -                      -                      -                      301,391           301,391           
  Assigned
    Culture and Recreation 557,129           268,121           -                      285,160           -                      1,110,410        
    Weed Control -                      -                      167,387           -                      -                      167,387           

TOTAL FUND BALANCE 557,129           268,121           167,387           285,160           301,391           1,579,188        

TOTAL LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS 
OF RESOURCES, AND FUND BALANCE 559,667$         268,121$         183,854$         285,160$         350,581$         1,647,383$      
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DEBT
SERVICE

FUND
Northwest Local

Conservation Tourism and Weed Control Marketing Lease
Trust Development District District Service
Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund TOTALS

REVENUES
  Taxes -$                    240,635$         19,383$           482,031$         144,228$         886,277$         
  Intergovernmental Revenue 74,166             -                      -                      -                      -                      74,166             
  Interest on Investments 10,778             -                      -                      -                      -                      10,778             
  Miscellaneous -                      -                      -                      -                      54,782             54,782             

TOTAL REVENUES 84,944             240,635           19,383             482,031           199,010           1,026,003        

EXPENDITURES
  Current Expenditures
     Culture and Recreation 51,734             152,500           -                      328,660           -                      532,894           
  Debt Service -                      -                      -                      31,944             218,052           249,996           

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 51,734             152,500           -                      360,604           218,052           782,890           

Net Change in Fund Balance 33,210             88,135             19,383             121,427           (19,042)           243,113           

Fund Balance at Beginning of Year 523,919           179,986           148,004           163,733           320,433           1,336,075        

Fund Balance at End of Year 557,129$         268,121$         167,387$         285,160$         301,391$         1,579,188$      
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VARIANCE
EXPENDITURES EXPENDITURES WITH FINAL
REPORTED ON ADJUSTMENTS ON THE BUDGET

THE GAAP TO BUDGETARY BUDGETARY POSITIVE
ORIGINAL FINAL BASIS BASIS BASIS (NEGATIVE)

Governmental Funds
Capital Projects Fund
   Facilities Expanion Fund 235,800$      1,135,800$    1,099,623$        -$                       1,099,623$         36,177$              

Nonmajor Governmental Funds
   Special Revenue Funds
     Conservation Trust Fund 127,452        127,452        51,734               -                         51,734                75,718                
     Tourism and Development Fund 152,500        152,500        152,500             -                         152,500              -                         
     Northwest Weed Control District Fund 65,300          65,300          -                        -                         -                         65,300                
     Local Marketing District Fund 356,965        360,604        360,604             -                         360,604              -                         

Total Special Revenue Funds 702,217        705,856        564,838             -                         564,838              141,018              

   Debt Service Fund
     Lease Service Fund 218,053        218,053        218,052             -                         218,052              1                         

Total Major Capital Projects Fund and
  Non-Major Governmental Funds 1,156,070$    2,059,709$    1,882,513$        -$                       1,882,513$         177,196$            

Proprietary Funds
  Enterprise Funds
    Mosca General Improvement District Fund 1,348,500$    1,348,500$    9,946$               20,092$              30,038$              1,318,462$         

  Internal Service Funds
    Health Insurance Fund 1,911,831     1,924,831     1,917,863          -                         1,917,863           6,968                  

   Total Proprietary Funds 3,260,331$    3,273,331$    1,927,809$        20,092$              1,947,901$         1,325,430$         

Adjustments to budgetary basis include the  cost of capitalized assets funded with proceeds from debt.
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Auditee EIN: 84-6000733
Total Amount: 4,729,090$   

Federal 

Awarding 

Agency Prefix

CFDA Three 

Digit 

Extension

Name of Federal Award
Amount 

Expended     
Cluster Name     

Federal 

Program Total
Cluster Total

Direct 

Award 

(Y/N)

If column (k) is "N", list 

Name of Pass-through 

Entity

10 561

STATE ADMINISTRATIVE MATCHING 

GRANTS FOR THE SUPPLEMENTAL 

NUTRITION ASSISTANCE PROGRAM 239,760$       SNAP CLUSTER 239,760$          239,760$      N

COLORADO DEPT. OF 

HUMAN SERVICES

10 569

EMERGENCY FOOD ASSISTANCE 

PROGRAM (FOOD COMMODITIES) 71,912$         

FOOD 

DISTRIBUTION 

CLUSTER 71,912$            71,912$        N

CARE AND SHARE 

FOOD BANK

10 665

SCHOOLS AND ROADS - GRANTS TO 

STATES 18,078$         

FOREST SERVICE 

SCHOOLS AND 

ROADS CLUSTER 18,078$            18,078$        N

COLORADO DEPT. OF 

TREASURY

93 558

TEMPORARY ASSISTANCE FOR NEEDY 

FAMILIES 880,456$       TANF CLUSTER 880,456$          880,456$      N

COLORADO DEPT.  OF 

HUMAN SERVICES

93 563 CHILD SUPPORT ENFORCEMENT 230,098$       N/A 230,098$          N

COLORADO DEPT.  OF 

HUMAN SERVICES

93 568 LOW-INCOME HOME ENERGY ASSISTANCE 561,484$       N/A 561,484$          N

COLORADO DEPT.  OF 

HUMAN SERVICES

93 575

CHILD CARE AND DEVELOPMENT BLOCK 

GRANT 140,966$       CCDF CLUSTER 140,966$          289,068$      N

COLORADO DEPT.  OF 

HUMAN SERVICES

93 596

CHILD CARE MANDATORY AND 

MATCHING FUNDS OF THE CHILD CARE 

AND DEVELOPMENT FUND 148,102$       CCDF CLUSTER 148,102$          289,068$      N

COLORADO DEPT.  OF 

HUMAN SERVICES

ALAMOSA COUNTY, COLORADO
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

For the Year Ended December 31, 2016
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Federal 

Awarding 
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Extension
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Cluster Name     

Federal 

Program Total
Cluster Total

Direct 

Award 

(Y/N)

If column (k) is "N", list 

Name of Pass-through 

Entity

ALAMOSA COUNTY, COLORADO
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

For the Year Ended December 31, 2016

93 645

STEPHANIE TUBBS JONES CHILD WELFARE 

SERVICES PROGRAM 23,588$         N/A 23,588$            N

COLORADO DEPT.  OF 

HUMAN SERVICES

93 090 GUARDIANSHIP ASSISTANCE 2,701$           N/A 2,701$             N

COLORADO DEPT.  OF 

HUMAN SERVICES

93 658 FOSTER CARE_TITLE IV-E 610,813$       N/A 610,813$          N

COLORADO DEPT.  OF 

HUMAN SERVICES

93 659 ADOPTION ASSISTANCE 149,690$       N/A 149,690$          N

COLORADO DEPT.  OF 

HUMAN SERVICES

93 667 SOCIAL SERVICES BLOCK GRANT 237,662$       N/A 237,662$          N

COLORADO DEPT.  OF 

HUMAN SERVICES

93 674

CHAFEE FOSTER CARE INDEPENDENCE 

PROGRAM 2,087$           N/A 2,087$             N

COLORADO DEPT.  OF 

HUMAN SERVICES

93 778 MEDICAL ASSISTANCE PROGRAM 363,077$       

MEDICAID 

CLUSTER 670,391$          670,391$      N

COLORADO DEPT.  OF 

HUMAN SERVICES

93 778 MEDICAL ASSISTANCE PROGRAM 64,884$         

MEDICAID 

CLUSTER 670,391$          670,391$      N

COLORADO DEPT.  OF 

HUMAN SERVICES
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Auditee EIN: 84-6000733
Total Amount: 4,729,090$   

Federal 

Awarding 
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ALAMOSA COUNTY, COLORADO
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

For the Year Ended December 31, 2016

93 778 MEDICAL ASSISTANCE PROGRAM 242,430$       

MEDICAID 

CLUSTER 670,391$          670,391$      N

COLORADO DEPT. OF 

PUBLIC HEALTH AND 

ENVIRONMENT

66 605 PERFORMANCE PARTNERSHIP GRANTS 923$              N/A 923$                N

COLORADO DEPT. OF 

PUBLIC HEALTH AND 

ENVIRONMENT

93 069

PUBLIC HEALTH EMERGENCY 

PREPAREDNESS 218,026$       N/A 218,026$          N

COLORADO DEPT. OF 

PUBLIC HEALTH AND 

ENVIRONMENT

93 074

HOSPITAL PREPAREDNESS PROGRAM (HPP) 

AND PUBLIC HEALTH EMERGENCY 

PREPAREDNESS (PHEP) ALIGNED 

COOPERATIVE AGREEMENTS 76,517$         N/A 76,517$            N

COLORADO DEPT. OF 

PUBLIC HEALTH AND 

ENVIRONMENT

93 268

IMMUNIZATION COOPERATIVE 

AGREEMENTS 8,415$           N/A 8,415$             N

COLORADO DEPT. OF 

PUBLIC HEALTH AND 

ENVIRONMENT

93 758

PREVENTIVE HEALTH AND HEALTH 

SERVICES BLOCK GRANT FUNDED SOLELY 

WITH PREVENTION AND PUBLIC HEALTH 

FUNDS (PPHF) 73,130$         N/A 73,130$            N

COLORADO DEPT. OF 

PUBLIC HEALTH AND 

ENVIRONMENT

93 994

MATERNAL AND CHILD HEALTH SERVICES 

BLOCK GRANT TO THE STATES 24,585$         N/A 24,585$            N

COLORADO DEPT. OF 

PUBLIC HEALTH AND 

ENVIRONMENT

97 042

EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT 

PERFORMANCE GRANTS 22,500$         N/A 22,500$            N

COLORADO DEPT. OF 

LOCAL AFFAIRS
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SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
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14 228

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT BLOCK 

GRANTS/STATE'S PROGRAM AND NON-

ENTITLEMENT GRANTS IN HAWAII 3,600$           N/A 16,712$            N

COLORADO DEPT. OF 

LOCAL AFFAIRS

14 228

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT BLOCK 

GRANTS/STATE'S PROGRAM AND NON-

ENTITLEMENT GRANTS IN HAWAII 13,112$         N/A 16,712$            N

COLORADO DEPT. OF 

LOCAL AFFAIRS

16 575 CRIME VICTIM ASSISTANCE 300,494$       N/A 300,494$          N

COLORADO DIVISION 

OF CRIMINAL JUSTICE

Total Federal Awards Expended 4,729,090$    
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NOTE 1  BASIS OF PRESENTATION

NOTE 2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

NOTE 3  FOOD DISTRIBUTION

ALAMOSA COUNTY, COLORADO
NOTES TO THE SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

For the Year Ended December 31, 2016

The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards (the Schedule) includes the federal grant activity of

Alamosa County, Colorado under programs of the federal government for the year ended December 31, 2016. The

information in this Schedule is presented in accordance with the requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal

Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal

Awards (Uniform Guidance) . Because the Schedule presents only a selected portion of the operations of Alamosa

County, Colorado, it is not intended to and does not present the financial position, changes in net position, or cash flows

of Alamosa County, Colorado.

Expenditures reported on the Schedule are reported on the modified accrual basis of accounting. Such expenditures are

recognized following the cost principles contained in the Uniform Guidance , wherein certain types of expenditures are

not allowable or are limited as to reimbursement. Pass-through entity identifying numbers are presented where available.

Community Development Block Grants/State's Program and Non-Entitlement Grants in Hawaii funds were passed

through to subrecipients. Negative amounts shown on the Schedule represent adjustments or credits made in the normal

course of business to amounts reported as expenditures in prior years. The County did not elect to use the 10-percent de

minimis indirect cost rate as allowed under Uniform Guidance for the year ended December 31, 2016.

Nonmonetary assistance is reported in the Schedule at the fair market value of commodities received and disbursed.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL  
OVER FINANCIAL  REPORTING  AND ON COMPLIANCE AND  

OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL  
STATEMENTS  PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH  

GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS  
 
 

To the Board of County Commissioners  
Alamosa  County, Colorado  
Alamosa , Colorado  
 
We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America 
and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards issued by the 
Comptroller General of the United States , the financial statements of the governmental activities, the business -
type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of Alamosa  County, Colorado 
(the County), as of and for the year ended December 31, 2016, and the related  notes to the financial statements, 
which collectively comprise the County’s basic financial statements , and have issued our report thereon dated 
June 16, 2017.  
 
Internal Control Over Financial Reporting  
 
In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the County’s internal control 
over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that are appropriate in the 
circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements , but not for the purpose of 
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the County’s internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an 
opinion on the effectiveness of the County’s internal control.  
 
A deficiency in internal control  exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or 
employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, 
misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness  is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal 
control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity’s financial statements 
will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis.  A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a 
combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough 
to merit attention by those charged with governance.   
 
Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this section 
and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses or 
significant deficiencies and therefore, material weaknesses or significant deficiencies may exist that were not 
identified. We did identify  a certain deficienc y in internal control , described in the accompanying schedule of 
findings and questioned costs that we consider to be a material weakness . Finding 2016-001. 

 
Compliance and Other Matters  
 
As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the County’s financial statements are free from material 
misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and 
grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the determination of 
financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an 
objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed  no 
instance s of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing 
Standards.  
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County's Response to the Finding 
 
The County's response to the finding  identified in our audit is described in the accompanying corrective action 
plan.  The County's response was not subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial 
statements and, accordingly, we express no opinion on it. 
 
Purpose of this Report  
 
The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance and 
the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control or on 
compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing 
Standards  in consider ing the entity’s internal control and compliance . Accordingly, this communication is not 
suitable for any other purpose . 
 
 
 
Wall, Smith, Bateman Inc. 
Alamosa, Colorado  
 
June 16, 2017 
 

KimB
Wall, Smith, Bateman Inc.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON COMPLIANCE  
 FOR EACH MAJOR PROGRAM AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL  

 OVER COMPLIANCE REQUIRED BY THE UNIFORM GUIDANCE  
 

 
To the Board of County Commissioners  
Alamosa County, Colorado  
Alamosa, Colorado  
 
Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program 
 
We have audited Alamosa County, Colorado's (the County)  compliance with the types of compliance 
requirements described in the OMB Compliance Supplement  that could have a direct and material effect on each 
of the County's  major federal programs for the year ended December 31, 2016. The County's  major federal 
programs are identified in the summary of auditor s' results section of the accompanying schedule of findings and 
questioned costs.  
 
Management’s Responsibility  
 
Management is responsible for compliance with federal statutes, regulations, and the terms and conditions of its 
federal awards applicable to its federal programs.  
 
Auditor s' Responsibility  
 
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for each of the County's  major federal programs based 
on our audit of the types of compliance requirements referred to above. We conducted our audit of compliance in 
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America; the standards applicable 
to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards , issued by the Comptroller General of the United 
States; and the audit requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative 
Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance). Those 
standards and the Uniform Guidance  require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonab le assurance 
about whether noncompliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a 
direct and material effect on a major federal program occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, 
evidence about the County's  compliance with those requirements and performing such other procedures as we 
considered necessary in the circumstances.  
 
We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for each major federal 
program. However, our audit does not provide a legal determination of the County's  compliance.  
 
Opinion on Each Major Federal Program 
 
In our opinion, Alamosa County, Colorado,  complied, in all material respects, with the types of compliance 
requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on each of its major federal programs 
for the year ended December 31, 2016. 

 
Report on Internal Control Over Compliance  
 
Management of the County, is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal control over 
compliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above. In planning and performing our audit 
of compliance, we considered the County's  internal control over compliance with the types of requirements that 
could have a direct and material effect on each major federal program to determine the auditing procedures that 
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are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing an opinion on compliance for each major 
federal program and to test and report on internal control over compliance in accordance with the Uniform 
Guidance , but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control over 
compliance. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the County's  internal control over 
compliance.  
 
A deficiency in internal control over compliance  exists when the design or operation of a control over compliance 
does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, 
or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program on a timely 
basis. A material weakness in internal control over compliance  is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in 
internal control over compliance, such that there is a reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a 
type of compliance requirement of a federal program will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely 
basis. A significant deficiency in internal control over compliance  is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, 
in internal control over compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program that is less severe 
than a material weakness in internal control over compliance, yet important enough to merit attention by those 
charged with governance.  
 
Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph 
of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over compliance that might be 
material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. We did not identify any deficiencies in internal control over 
compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses.  However, material weaknesses may exist that have not 
been identifi ed. 
 
The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our testing of 
internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of the Uniform Guidance . 
Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose.  
 
 
 
Wall, Smith, Bateman Inc. 
Alamosa, Colorado  
 
June 16, 2017 
 

KimB
Wall, Smith, Bateman Inc.
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Section I – Summary of Auditor s’ Results  
 

Financial Statements  
 

Type of auditors’ report issued:        Unmodified  
 

Internal control over financial reporting:  
§ Material weakness(es) identified?          X     yes                      no 
§ Significant deficiency(ies) identified that are not 

considered to be material weakness (es)?                 yes       X     none reported  
§ Noncompliance material to financial  statements noted?               yes       X     no 
 

Federal Awards  
 

Internal control over major programs:  
§ Material weakness(es) identified?     ______yes         X     no 
§ Significant deficiency(ies) identified that are not 
      considered to be material weakness (es)?                yes        X     none reported  
 

Type of auditors’ report issued on compliance  for major programs:               Unmodified  
 

Any audit findings disclosed that are required  to be reported in  
accordance with 2 CFR section 200.516(a) ?                yes       X     no 

  
Identification of major programs:  
 
CFDA Number(s)    Name of Federal Program or Cluster  

93.558    Temporary Assistance for Needy Families (TANF) Cluster  
93.568    Low-Income Home Energy Assistance  
93.778    Medicaid Cluster  
 

Dollar threshold used to distinguish between  type A and type B programs:  $750,000  
 

Auditee qualified as a low-risk auditee?      ______yes        X     no 
  

 
Section II – Financial Statement Findings  

 
Finding 2016-001:  Internal Control  Over Financial Reporting  
  (Repeat of Finding 2015-001) 
  
Type of finding:  Internal  Control (material weakness )  

 
Condition /Cause: The County does not have a complete system of internal control to prevent and detect financial 
misstatements.  

 
Criteria : A system of internal controls includes the design, documentation, and monitoring of control activities over 
budgeting , the application of accounting principles, antifraud programs, non-routine transaction s, financial statement 
preparation and safeguarding of assets.  
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Effect: Seven adjusting  journal  entries  were proposed  to correctly state the County financial statements in accordance 
with generally accepted accounting principles.  
 
Recommendation:   The County should strengthen its system of internal controls with adopted policies and procedures 
for recording  non-routine and interfund  transactions, reconcile monthly activity to identify and correct errors in a 
timely manner , and incorporate a review process to ensure the accuracy of financial records throughout  the year. 
 
Management’s Response:  See corrective action plan. 

 
 

Section III – Federal Award Findings and Questioned Costs 
 

None 
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Section II – Financial Statement Findings  
 
Finding 2015-001: Internal Control Over Financial Reporting  
 
Type of finding: Internal Control (material weakness)  

 
Condition: The County does not have a complete system of internal control to prevent and detect financial 
misstatements in the Public Health and Department of Human Services funds.  

 
Status:   Not Implemented . (See Finding 2016-001.) 
 
 
Finding 2015-002:   Jail Commissary Account   
 
Type of finding: Internal Control (material weakness) and Material Noncompliance  

 
Condition/Cause: The Sheriff's Department system of internal controls does not include the appropriate design, 
documentation, and monitoring of control activities to ensure the correct recording of financial transactions and 
compliance with laws and regulations which could have a direct and material effect on the determination of 
financial statement amounts.  
 
Status:  Implemented  
 
 

Section III – Federal Award Findings and Questioned Costs 
 

None 





Financial Planning 02/01

The public report burden for this information collection is estimated to average 380 hours annually.  Form # 350-050-36

City or County:
ALAMOSA COUNTY
YEAR ENDING :
December 2016

This Information From The Records Of (example - City of _ or County of _):Prepared By: Brittney DeHerrera
COUNTY OF ALAMOSA Phone:  719-589-4848

A.     Local         B.       Local           C.  Receipts from    D.  Receipts from  
Motor-Fuel Motor-Vehicle State Highway- Federal Highway

Taxes Taxes User Taxes Administration
1.  Total receipts available
2.  Minus amount used for collection expenses
3.  Minus amount used for nonhighway purposes
4.  Minus amount used for mass transit
5.  Remainder used for highway purposes 

AMOUNT AMOUNT
A.  Receipts from local sources: A.  Local highway disbursements:
     1.  Local highway-user taxes      1.  Capital outlay (from page 2) 359,723
          a.  Motor Fuel  (from Item I.A.5.)      2.  Maintenance: 1,937,173
          b.  Motor Vehicle (from Item I.B.5.)      3.  Road and street services:
          c.  Total (a.+b.)           a.  Traffic control operations 9,029
     2.  General fund appropriations           b.  Snow and ice removal 81,682
     3.  Other local imposts (from page 2) 142,212           c.  Other 6,711
     4.  Miscellaneous local receipts (from page 2) 563,040           d.  Total  (a. through c.) 97,422
     5.  Transfers from toll facilities      4.  General administration & miscellaneous 212,770
     6.  Proceeds of sale of bonds and notes:      5.  Highway law enforcement and safety 10,481
          a.  Bonds - Original Issues      6.  Total  (1 through 5) 2,617,569
          b.  Bonds - Refunding Issues B.  Debt service on local obligations:
          c.  Notes 444,037      1.  Bonds:
          d.  Total (a. + b. + c.) 444,037           a.  Interest
     7.  Total (1 through 6) 1,149,289           b.  Redemption
B.  Private Contributions           c.  Total (a. + b.) 0
C.  Receipts from State government      2.  Notes:
       (from page 2) 2,016,895           a.  Interest 8,893
D.  Receipts from Federal Government           b.  Redemption 271,139
       (from page 2) 24,261           c.  Total (a. + b.) 280,032
E.  Total receipts (A.7 + B + C + D) 3,190,445      3.  Total  (1.c + 2.c) 280,032

C.  Payments to State for highways
D.  Payments to toll facilities
E.  Total disbursements (A.6 + B.3 + C + D) 2,897,601

Opening Debt Amount Issued Redemptions Closing Debt
A.  Bonds (Total) 0
        1.  Bonds (Refunding Portion)
B.  Notes (Total) 494,169 444,037 271,139 667,067

A. Beginning Balance B. Total Receipts C. Total Disbursements D. Ending Balance E. Reconciliation
2,014,693 3,190,445 2,897,601 2,307,537 0

Notes and Comments:

FORM FHWA-536 (Rev. 1-05)           PREVIOUS EDITIONS OBSOLETE (Next Page)
1

LOCAL HIGHWAY FINANCE REPORT

I.  DISPOSITION OF HIGHWAY-USER REVENUES AVAILABLE FOR LOCAL GOVERNMENT EXPENDITURE

ITEM

III.  DISBURSEMENTS FOR ROAD

V.  LOCAL ROAD AND STREET FUND BALANCE

ITEM

II.  RECEIPTS FOR ROAD AND STREET PURPOSES

IV.   LOCAL HIGHWAY DEBT STATUS
(Show all entries at par)

ITEM
  AND STREET PURPOSES

Highway Users Tax Report Form.xls



STATE:
Colorado
YEAR ENDING (mm/yy):
December 2016

AMOUNT AMOUNT
A.3.  Other local imposts: A.4.  Miscellaneous local receipts:
    a.  Property Taxes and Assessments 30,131           a.  Interest on investments
    b.  Other local imposts:           b.  Traffic Fines & Penalities
        1.  Sales Taxes 67,028           c. Parking Garage Fees
        2.  Infrastructure & Impact Fees           d.  Parking Meter Fees
        3.  Liens           e.  Sale of Surplus Property 165,206
        4. Licenses 42,354           f.  Charges for Services
        5. Specific Ownership &/or Other 2,699           g.  Other Misc. Receipts 214,688
        6.  Total (1. through 5.) 112,081           h.  Other 183,146
    c.  Total (a. + b.) 142,212           i.  Total (a. through h.) 563,040

(Carry forward to page 1) (Carry forward to page 1) 

AMOUNT AMOUNT
C.   Receipts from State Government D.  Receipts from Federal Government
    1.  Highway-user taxes 2,016,895     1.  FHWA (from Item I.D.5.)
    2.  State general funds     2.  Other Federal agencies:
    3.  Other State funds:         a.  Forest Service 24,261
        a.  State bond proceeds         b.  FEMA
        b.  Project Match         c.  HUD
        c.  Motor Vehicle Registrations         d.  Federal Transit Admin
        d. Other  (Specify) - DOLA Grant         e.  U.S. Corps of Engineers
        e.  Other (Specify)         f.  Other Federal
         f.  Total (a. through e.) 0         g.  Total (a. through f.) 24,261
   4.  Total (1. + 2. + 3.f) 2,016,895     3.  Total (1. + 2.g)

(Carry forward to page 1) 

ON NATIONAL OFF NATIONAL
HIGHWAY HIGHWAY TOTAL
SYSTEM SYSTEM

(a) (b) (c)
A.1.  Capital outlay:
          a.  Right-Of-Way Costs 0
          b.  Engineering Costs 0
          c.  Construction:  
               (1). New Facilities 0
               (2).  Capacity Improvements 0
               (3).  System Preservation 359,723 359,723
               (4).  System Enhancement & Operation 0
               (5).  Total Construction  (1) + (2) + (3) + (4) 0 359,723 359,723
         d.  Total Capital Outlay (Lines 1.a. + 1.b. + 1.c.5) 0 359,723 359,723

(Carry forward to page 1) 

Notes and Comments:

FORM FHWA-536 (Rev.1-05)           PREVIOUS EDITIONS OBSOLETE
2

III.  DISBURSEMENTS FOR ROAD AND STREET PURPOSES - DETAIL

II.  RECEIPTS FOR ROAD AND STREET PURPOSES - DETAIL

LOCAL HIGHWAY FINANCE REPORT

ITEM ITEM

ITEM ITEM
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